
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

3 September 2019 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CABINET 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet on 
Wednesday, 11th September, 2019 at 10.00 am 

In the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
 
Leader of the Council – Councillor Aaron Spencer 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Nigel Welton 
Councillors Alistair Arundell, Martin Griggs, Chelcei Sharman, Paul Skinner and 
Yvonne Stevens 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 17th July 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

D   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 6th September 2019.  
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING ITEM)*  
 

2   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
(STANDING ITEM)  
 

3   QUARTER 1 REPORT- PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE (Pages 9 - 62) 
 

 A report by Suzanne Rolfe- Transformation Governance Manager and Paul Julian- 
Chief Finance Officer and Section 151 Officer.  
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Aaron Spencer  
 

4   TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME- REFRESH (Pages 63 - 80) 
 

 A report by Corporate Management Team.  
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Aaron Spencer  
 

5   IT STRATEGY 2019-2023 (Pages 81 - 96) 
 

 A report by Suzanne Rolfe- Transformation and Governance Manager. 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Aaron Spencer 
 

 
 

* In accordance with the Constitution, recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees referred to Cabinet (if any) shall be included at this point in the 
agenda (unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet 
deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda) within six weeks of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee completing its report / recommendations. 

 
Call-In –any decision taken by the Cabinet concerning an item on this agenda can be 
‘called in’ in accordance with the Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision 
notice being published.  It is expected that the decision notice will be published on                                   
13th September 2019. Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in a decision 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 20th September 2019. 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
the consideration of exempt or confidential items. 

 

Emergency Procedures In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are 
asked to leave the building via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to 

the Fire Assembly Point located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal 
Buildings. 

 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Tel. no: 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
NOTICE OF DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET ON 17 JULY 2019 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 

 
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: FRIDAY, 26 JULY 2019 

 
NOTES: 
 
A COPY OF THE CABINET AGENDA HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED TO 
ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY FURTHER 
INFORMATION ON ANY ISSUE PLEASE CONTACT, IN THE FIRST INSTANCE, THE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR OFFICER NAMED IN THE RIGHT HAND COLUMN. 
 

 
MEETING OF THE CABINET 17 July 2019 
 
 
Present: 
Councillor Aaron Spencer, in the Chair 
Councillors Nigel Welton, Alistair Arundell, Martin Griggs, Chelcei Sharman and 
Yvonne Stevens 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer), Chief Finance Officer and 
S151 Officer, Head of Place and Space, Head of Regulatory Services, Head of 
Environmental Operations, Communications Manager and Democratic Services 
Manager 
 
10   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 5 June 2019 were received and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
11   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received form Councillor Paul Skinner.  
 
12   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
13   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
A question had been received from Mr. Darron Abbott. 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



 
Question from Mr. Darron Abbott to the Leader  
 
“Firstly my I take this opportunity congratulate you on your promotion to the position of 
leader of the Council. 
 
In your first interview you told the local democracy report that "you wanted to bring the 
chamber on all sides together" and that your "job is showing them I'm there for unity". 
 
With these comments are we to assume that you would like all councillors, not just 
within your party to work hard and do their best for the town and all of their constituents. 
Will you work with all of the elected representatives within this chamber to achieve the 
desired results.  
 
Can we assume that you will follow the Nolan principles closely, something your 
predecessors have been accused of not doing. In doing so will you encourage all of your 
other 29 colleagues to do the same in this new era of unity that you foresee.” 
 
Response by the Leader  
 
“I would like to thank Mr Abbott for notice of his question and further extend my gratitude 
for his exclaimed congratulations on my appointment as leader. I can confirm my desire 
as put across at full council on the 15th July, that I wish to further involve all members of 
the council.  
 
I will try to be an exemplar of the Nolan principles, and intend to work with anyone who 
wishes to put aside petty issues and work for a better borough. I am not however naïve 
enough to imagine a future where all members of the council agree on everything but I 
want these disagreements to be polite and expressed in an appropriate way. 
 
It is my hope that by adopting a more open and unified approach to working we as a 
council and a town can move forward effectively and better serve all the residents we as 
councillors represent.” 
 
Supplementary question asked by Mr. Abbott  
 
“As you may be aware, I was present for the great love in on Monday evening, indeed it 
was like being transported into some kind of Richard Curtis film, or perhaps we were all 
just under the fragrance of the new horticultural and manufacturing industries that seem 
to becoming prevalent within the town. 
 
I really do hope you achieve your goal, but whilst you would encourage your Councillors 
to work together, should you not be ensuring that they are working for all of the town’s 
residents? 
 
Whilst the Council issues guidance on behaviour of Councillors, some fall short of these 
expectations and I have knowledge of two Councillors that have refused to represent 
some of the members of their ward.  When a complaint is raised the answer given by the 
Council refers to the LGA guidance which states they do not really have to do anything 
apart from attend a meeting every six months.  
 

Page 2



Cabinet 
17 July 2019 

 

 
 

I appreciate you cannot force Councillors to represent the electorate, but could you not 
encourage them to extend their new found love for their elected colleagues to the 
peasants who elected them.”  
 
Response by the Leader  
 
“As you mention there are no powers, but if Councillors do not engage with the public 
the acid test will be that they are not re-elected.   There is a corporate complaints 
process which can be used and I can forward the details of this to you.  
 
I attended a training session yesterday on Code of Conduct with regard to ward issues, 
some of which can be complex and some Members may find it easier to rebuff than face 
accusations. Unfortunately not all Members attended this training.” 
 
14   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING 

ITEM)* 
 

There were no recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
15   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

(BTAC) (STANDING ITEM) 
 

There were no recommendations from the Boston Town Area Committee.  
 
16   TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REFRESH 

 

 

DECISION 

 

1. That the proposed Transformation Programme be agreed for 
consultation prior to being submitted to Cabinet for 
reconsideration and recommendation to Full Council for formal 
approval. 

 

2. That an informal briefing on the proposed Transformation 
Programme refresh be arranged for all Members to show where 
savings have been delivered to date and where future savings 
may be identified and ensure all Members are involved in the 
process.  

 

Portfolio 

Holder 

and 

Officer 

 

Cllr 

Spencer 

 

CMT 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

The Chief Finance Officer introduced a report setting out proposals for a refresh of the 
Council’s Transformation Programme (TP) to meet the challenges of the projected 
budget position for the period 2020/21 to 2023/24 and the requirement to make net 
budget savings of almost £1m. 
 

Page 3



The report stated that the Council’s Transformation Programme had been in place for a 
number of years which had helped to identify and deliver projects designed to improve 
performance and make financial savings to meet the challenges of reducing resources 
across the local government sector.  
 
The current programme had helped the Council reduce its annual budget by over £2.5m, 
with initiatives including the relocation of DWP and other partners, Parish Councils / 
BTAC support and sharing services. 
 
The current Transformation Programme was scheduled until the end of the current 
financial year in line with the government’s four year settlement deal.  Therefore it was 
the appropriate time to consider a refresh of the programme. 
 
A draft of the proposed programme had been prepared arranged within four main 
themes:- 

 Commercialisation 

 Service Modernisation 

 Income Generation 

 Policy Changes 
 
It was highlighted that whilst the way services were organised was likely to change, the 
TP did not propose the absolute removal of any range of services currently being 
delivered. 
 
The themes would aim to build on the success of the current TP and retain the breadth 
of current services, whilst making the necessary budget decisions to balance annual 
spending plans. 
 
The projected budget gap for 2020/21 was over £0.5m rising to almost £0.9m by 
2023/24.  The indicative savings figures set out in the proposed TP refresh across the 
next four years was £1m, although it was accepted this would be refined and changed 
as more detailed work was undertaken on specific projects, and figures then 
incorporated into future budgets. 
 
If the proposed programme was agreed it would be published for consultation until 23 
August.  A report would then be considered by the Corporate and Community 
Committee on 5 September, recommendations referred to Cabinet on 11 September 
and onward to full Council on 23 September for approval.  
 
The Leader of the Council proposed that an all Member informal briefing be arranged on 
the proposed refresh of the TP to show where savings had been achieved and where 
future savings may be identified and ensure everyone was involved in the process.  
 
Concern was expressed regarding proposals contained in the refresh relating to 
increased charges.  It was noted that, at the current time, no decisions were being made 
other than to publish the TP refresh for public consultation, the feedback from which 
would then be considered as part of the decision making process in September. 
 

 

Page 4



Cabinet 
17 July 2019 

 

 
 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 

Not to refresh the Transformation Programme. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
17   BOSTON ALTERNATIVE ENERGY FACILITY CONSULTATION 

SUBMISSION 
 

 

DECISION 

 

 
That delegated authority be granted to the Deputy Chief Executive, 
in consultation with the Leader and Portfolio Holders for Economic 
Development and Planning and Environment, to finalise the 
consultation submission. 

Portfolio 

Holder and 

Officer 

 

Cllrs 

Spencer  

Stevens 

Welton  

 

MS 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

The Deputy Chief Executive introduced a report on the proposed Boston Alternative 
Energy Facility (BAEF) to be located at the Riverside Industrial Estate, adjacent to the 
tidal River Witham (known as the Haven) and down river from the Port of Boston. .  
 
The report stated that the Council was a consultee in the planning process to determine 
if the BAEF was approved.  As a National Significant Infrastructure Project, the 
application would be determined by the Secretary of State following a planning Inquiry 
led by a Planning Inspector.  
 
The proposal was a state of the art power-generation plant which developers presented 
as leading the way in land-based renewable power across the UK. 
 
The project would generate 102MW of renewable energy, of which 80MW would be 
exported to the National Grid and the residue would be used by the facility.  Electricity 

Page 5



would be generated in a secure, clean and affordable way. 
 
The project created the potential for significant economic development opportunities 
linked to the supply chain to support the plant and potential end users of the by-
products.  In addition, the proposals created opportunities for the Borough Council to 
work with the County Council through the Strategic Waste Partnership to consider 
alternative ways to manage waste. 
 
The project was at a stage where the Environmental Statement (ES) had been prepared 
which provided a summary of the project, the site selection process and key preliminary 
findings of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). 
 
The report set out details of the operation of proposed BAEF under the following 
headings:- 
 

 Project Need 

 Site Selection 

 Proposed construction and use of the facility 

 The Wharf 

 The DF storage and preparation 

 The gasification plant 

 The light aggregate plant 

 The CO2 recovery plant 
 
There were several strands within the Borough Council that had professional comments 
to be submitted as part of the consultation process which were set out in Appendix 2, 
together with supplementary questions that had arisen through the process.  The list of 
questions was not exhaustive and it was likely that more would emerge over the 
remaining period of time left within the consultation period.  
 
The previous consultation exercise had generated positive feedback from the agents 
acting on behalf of the applicant, many of the points raised were acknowledged and  
 
incorporated, such as the Visitor Centre that was suggested to mirror that which the 
Environment Agency had provided for the barrier project.  
 
The Phase 3 consultation exercise enabled the Council as a consultee to make further 
comment and seek clarity on outstanding issues to continue to influence any final 
proposal in a positive way for the benefit of the residents of the Borough as a whole. The 
proposed consultation response on behalf of the Council was set out in Appendix 1 of 
the report.  The Deputy Chief Executive commented that the response was very fluid as 
discussions were on-going to determine the Lead Competent Authority, work was 
commencing on the Statement of Common Ground and the Impact Statement had to be 
agreed by October.  
 
Cabinet had responsibility for the final submission and the matter would normally have 
been considered by the Environment and Performance Committee prior to consideration 
by Cabinet.  Due to the timing of the consultation period, this had not been possible and 
the report would be considered by the scrutiny committee on 30th July 2019.  It was 
therefore proposed to grant delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Leader and relevant portfolio holders, to finalise the Council’s 

Page 6



Cabinet 
17 July 2019 

 

 
 

submission taking into account comments from the Environment and Performance 
Committee and outcomes of relevant meetings with partner organisations.  
 
Cabinet endorsed the proposed consultation response and commented that the whilst 
project had many positive benefits for Boston the economic gains had to be balanced 
with the impact on the community, both residents and businesses, wildlife and the River 
Haven ecology.  
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 

As set out in the report. 
 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.20 am 
 

 

Signed by the Chief Executive  
 
       
 
 

19 July 2019 

 
 

 
 

 
These decisions will come into force (and may then be implemented) on the expiry of 
five clear working days after the date of this notice UNLESS the decisions are 
subjected to the Call-In procedure or are starred minutes requiring Full Council 
approval.  
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO:  CABINET 

DATE: 11 SEPTEMBER 2019 

SUBJECT: QUARTER 1 REPORT –  
PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR SPENCER – LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
This is the quarterly report covering performance, risk and finance monitoring 
information for Quarter 1 of 2019/20 (April to June 2019). 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. To note the quarterly monitoring information for Q1. 

2. To agree the specific finance recommendations, summarised below: 

 F1: To approve the reserve movements detailed in Table 6 

 F2: To approve the updated capital programme as detailed in Table 8 

 F3: To write-off the irrecoverable Business Rates Debt in the sum of £145,842 
and the Housing Benefit Over-Payments in the sum of £23,994 

 F4: That the supplementary estimates in respect of Rough Sleeper Initiative, 
Rapid Rehousing Pathway and Controlling Migration Fund, as set out in table 
13 

 F5: That the procurement exemption in respect of commissioning the first 
property to support activity under RSI funding be approved 

 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
Members are accountable for the delivery of the Council’s priorities and this 
monitoring information should be used as a tool to report on progress and highlight 
any key challenges forecast 
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
Alternative reporting arrangements 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 
 

Performance (Appendix A) 

 

1. Areas of success / improvement 

 Benefit and Council Tax Support processing times (Cllr Spencer) 

 Planning applications (Cllr Welton) 

 Switchboard (Cllr Welton) 

 Swim sessions at GMLC (Cllr Arundell) 

 Events income (Cllr Arundell) 

 Broadly compliant food businesses (Cllr Stevens) 

 Car parking income (Cllr Sharman) 

 Empty properties (Cllr Griggs) 

 Average time taken to respond to FOI/EIR requests (Cllr Skinner) 
 

2. Areas of concern / watching brief 

 Residual household waste per household (Cllr Stevens) 

 % of fly tip reports responded to within 2 working days (Cllr Stevens) 

 Market income (Cllr Sharman) 
 

3. Other items of note 

 Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) annual review letter 2019 (Cllr 
Welton) 

 

Risk (Appendix B) 

 

4. Update on risks in Quarter 1 

4.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact 
most on the achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the current 
Corporate Plan – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service. 

 

4.2 There are no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 1. Summary of strategic 
risks (full details in Appendix B) 

 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

1: Prosperity 
Flood risk 

Michelle 
Sacks 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and 
local economy 

Michelle 
Sacks 

9 Medium Green 

2: People 

Housing Andy Fisher 12 High Red 

Welfare Paul Julian 4 Medium Green 

Health Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population 
change 

Andy Fisher 9 Medium Green 

Budget Paul Julian 12 High Amber 

Capacity 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Paul Julian 9 Medium Amber 

Page 10



Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

Brexit Paul Julian 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil 
contingency 
risks 

Andy Fisher 8 Medium Green 

Compliance 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Green 

Reputation 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

 

5. Plans for review for 2019/20 

 
5.1 The strategic risks for 2019/20 will be reviewed alongside the development of 

the next Corporate Plan. 
 
5.2 The operational risks for 2019/20 have been reviewed by service managers as 

part of service planning for 2019/20 with a summary set out below. 
 
Head of Service Level Risk name 

Chief Finance Officer 

High 

Financial settlement 

Financial markets 

Pension fund 

Bad debts 

Legislative changes 

Business rates 

Medium 

Income levels 

Maintenance costs 

Inflation 

Capital spend 

Interest rates 

Partnership income 

New Homes Bonus 

Increased workload 

Transparency – compliance 

Transparency – security-related social engineering 

Business rates appeals 

Collection rates 

‘Universal support – delivered locally’ 

Corporate Director Medium 

Lone workers during canvass 

Capacity - Members 

Judicial Review 

Capacity - officers 

Corporate Services 

High Loss / theft / corruption of data 

Medium 

Corporate requirements 

Data quality 

Information management - remote working 

Reactive communications 

Negative publicity 

Page 11



Head of Service Level Risk name 

Customer service 

Employment relations and liability claims 

HR/payroll system failure 

Loss of key staff 

Use of temporary staff 

Pay award 

Delivery of key ICT projects 

Investment in ICT 

Public Services Network (PSN) risk 

Partnerships 

Operations 

High Cremator maintenance and repair 

Medium 

Cemetery land 

Vandalism in public open spaces 

Tree Condition Survey / Cemetery Memorial Survey 

Go Plant Fleet Services Ltd contract (formerly EFS) 

Garden waste scheme 

Environmental enforcement 

Commercial waste and recycling service 

Disposal arrangements 

Bartec 

Place Medium 

Guildhall ACE accreditation 

GMLC 

Leisure 

Repairs and maintenance 

Theft from car parking machines 

Events risk 

Markets risk 

Regulatory Services 

High Housing Register 

Medium 

Building Control market share 

Safeguarding 

CCTV East Lindsey 

CCTV Disaster Recovery 

Food Law 

Shellfish fees 

Disabled Facility Grants (DFGs) 

Capacity / loss of staff 

Land charges register 

Licensing appeals 

Low Affordable housing 

 

Financial management (Appendix C) 

 
6. Finance headlines: 

 The National Picture (section 1) 

 Revenue budget (section 2): table 1 details spend for the year against 
budget by service area, table 2 by portfolio holder and table 3 by corporate 
priority. 

 Variations to budget (section 3) 

 Controlling Migration Fund (section 4, table 4) 

Page 12



 Trading income (section 5; table 5) 

 Earmarked reserves (section 6; table 6) – recommendation for Cabinet to 
approve the reserve movements as detailed in the table 

 Treasury management (section 7) 

 Capital (section 8; table 8) – recommendation for Cabinet to approve the 
updated capital programme as detailed in the table 

 Consultancy costs (section 9; table 9) 

 Debt collection (section 10; tables 10 to 12) – recommendation for Cabinet 
to write-off irrecoverable Business Rates Debt in the sum of £145,842 and 
the Housing Benefit Over-Payments in the sum of £23,994 

 Supplementary estimates (section 11; table 13) 

 Insurance (section 12; table 14) 

 Procurement exemptions (section 13) – recommendation for Cabinet to 
approve the exemption in respect of commissioning the first property to 
support activity under RSI funding be approved 

 Localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support Scheme (section 
14; table 15) 

 Other financial matters (section 15) 
 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Overall, performance in Quarter 1 of 2019/20 was in line with targets. 
 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are set out in the ‘Finance’ section of the report, with 
specific recommendations highlighted in the recommendations section at the 
beginning of this covering report 
 

 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Local Government Act 1999 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
The performance and risk implications are set out in the relevant sections of the 
report, with specific recommendations highlighted in the recommendations section at 
the beginning of this covering report 
 

 

Page 13



CONSULTATION 

Consultation has been undertaken with CMT. 

 

 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report:- 
 

APPENDIX A Q1 performance 

APPENDIX B Q1 risks 

APPENDIX C Q1 finance 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 

 

Page 14



Appendix A 

 

 

Performance Q1 2019/20 
 
Performance measures: directly within the Council’s control; used to monitor how our services 
are performing against set targets 
 
Trend measures: provide context and not directly within the Council’s control; used to inform 
decision making and policy. 
 
Key to abbreviations: 
Performance: : Performance better than target; : Performance on target; : Performance 
worse than target 
 

CMT lead: AF: Andy Fisher; CA: Christian Allen; KN: Katharine Nundy; MS: Michelle Sacks; PD: 
Phil Drury; PJ: Paul Julian; PP: Phil Perry 
 

Portfolio: DL: Deputy Leader – Economic Development and Planning; E: Environmental Services; 
H: Housing and Communities; L: Leader; R: Regulatory; TA: Tourism, Arts, Culture and Heritage; 
TC: Town Centre 
 

Corporate Priority: 1: Prosperity; 2: People; 3: Place; 4: Public Service 
 

Scrutiny: CC: Corporate and Community Committee; EP: Environment and Performance 
Committee 
 

 

Portfolio: Leader – Cllr Aaron Spencer 
 

Leader: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 - full year 2019/20 - Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Benefit processing time – 
new claims (days) 

PJ AS 2 CC 3.80 10  3.72 10  

Benefit processing time – 
change in circumstances 
(days) 

PJ AS 2 CC 6.88 14  5.25 14  

Council Tax Support 
processing – new claims 
(days) 

PJ AS 2 CC 7.76 10  5.85 10  

Council Tax Support 
processing time – change in 
circumstances (days) 

PJ AS 2 CC 6.89 14  7.12 14  

Business Rates collection 
(% collected) 

PJ AS 4 CC 96.19% 98.00%  31.46% 31.79%  

Council Tax collection (% 
collected) 

PJ AS 4 CC 96.01% 96.00%  27.49% 28.12%  

Sickness absence – overall 
(days) 

KN AS 4 CC 6.3 7.0  2.08 1.75  

Sickness absence – long 
term (days) 

KN AS 4 CC 3.8 5.0  1.55 1.25  

Sickness absence – short 
term (days) 

KN AS 4 CC 2.4 2.0  0.53 0.50  

Page 15



Appendix A 

 

 

 
Leader: trend measures 
 
Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

 
 
Corporate Priority 4: Public Service 
 

 
 

 -  

 5.000  

 10.000  

 15.000  

 20.000  

 25.000  

 30.000  

17/1: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

19/20: 
Q1 

Gross (£m) 24.567  24.129  24.322  24.261  25.532  25.363  25.450  25.402  26.548  

Net (£m) 20.068  19.427  19.872  19.730  20.637  20.308  20.316  20.244  20.718  

Collectable business rates 

0 

1000 

2000 

3000 

4000 

5000 

6000 

7000 

8000 

9000 

16/17
: Q1 

16/17
: Q2 

16/17
: Q3 

16/17
: Q4 

17/18
: Q1 

17/18
: Q2 

17/18
: Q3 

17/18
: Q4 

18/19
: Q1 

18/19
: Q2 

18/19
: Q3 

18/19
:Q4 

19/20
:Q1 

Number 5839 5227 4829 8099 6384 5923 7696 8097 7527 6790 8735 8146 8368 

Number of online payments 

Page 16



Appendix A 

 

 

Complaints 
 

Complaint 
Service 
area 

Justified? Outcome 

Complaint about bailiff 
Credit 
control 

No 

No evidence that bailiffs didn't attend the 
property. Customer advised to pay the 
outstanding balance direct to BBC, once 
balance cleared bailiffs recovery fee will be 
removed. Bailiffs have agreed to record visits 
and paperwork in future. 

Complaint against 
member of staff and 
about a liability order 
issued for unpaid non-
domestic rates 

Credit 
control 

No 

No evidence of wrongdoing by member of 
staff. Liability order not defended at 
magistrate's court. Advised to appeal to 
magistrate's court directly 

Complaint re council 
tax bill 

Credit 
control 

No 
4 separate payment plans have been 
defaulted on; one final chance has now been 
offered to clear the debt prior to court 

Complaint relating to 
outstanding council 
tax 

Credit 
control 

No 

Agreed that account will be suspended for 3 
weeks to give customer opportunity to supply 
completed financial statement upon which a 
decision will be made to set repayment at an 
affordable rate. Customer advised that failure 
to return financial statement will lead to bailiff 
action. 

Disputing amount of 
Council tax due and 
summons received 

Credit 
control 

No 

Advised customer that billing is correct and 
amount outstanding remains. Customer 
advised to contact the Court or contact credit 
control to settle outstanding amount. 

Allegations against 
member of staff - 
confidential 

People 
Services 

No 

Investigation undertaken, unable to contact 
customer to seek further detail. Customer 
advised to make contact within 7 days if they 
have further information to submit. 

Complaint about 
sarcastic comment by 
assessor resulting in 
depression 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

No 

Customer was asked to provide dates and 
context so that this could be investigated but 
no response. Investigation closed unless 
further information received 

Complaint re name on 
bill not being 
amended 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

No 

Both names on council tax but customer 
unhappy with the template of the letter which 
cannot be altered. Letter sent explaining the 
reason bills are issued and what is legally 
required on the bill. Referred to the LGO – no 
investigation; closed. 

 
Compliments 
 

Compliment Service area 

External auditors: The first year of our audit of the Council's 2018/2019 
Accounts went smoothly, and officers responded swiftly to queries. 

Finance 

Thank you Sophie, prompt and effective as ever. ICT 

 
  

Page 17



Appendix A 

 

 

Portfolio: Deputy Leader – Economic Development and Planning – Cllr Nigel Welton 
 

Deputy Leader: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 
(full year) 

2019/20 Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

% of major planning applications 
determined on time* 

MS NW 1 EP 83% 75%  75% 75%  

% minor planning applications 
determined on time* 

MS NW 1 EP 71% 65%  89% 65%  

% of all other applications determined 
on time* 

MS NW 1 EP 77% 80%  85% 80%  

Number of businesses visited to 
support business growth 

MS NW 1 EP 56 50  10 12  

Number of events attended to promote 
the Borough 

MS NW 1 EP 4 4  1 1  

Switchboard - % of abandoned calls KN NW 4 CC 6% 10%  5% 15%  

Switchboard – average waiting time (in 
seconds) 

KN NW 4 CC 42 45  45 60  

 

Deputy Leader: trend measures 
 

Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

 

                                                
*
 ‘On time’ – within statutory target determination period or such extended period as agreed in writing with the 

applicant/agent 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 19/20:Q1 

Major 86% 100% 63% 56% 64% 79% 84% 83% 75% 

Target 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Major planning applications determined on time 

Page 18



Appendix A 

 

 

 
 

 
 
The Government tracks planning performance over a cumulative 2-year period. Boston’s 
performance is currently at 77% for majors (against a minimum standard of 60%) and 76% for 
minors and others (against a minimum standard of 70%). 
 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 19/20:Q1 

Minor 76% 85% 71% 54% 45% 67% 68% 71% 89% 

Target 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Minor planning applications determined on time 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 19/20:Q1 

Other 97% 93% 84% 60% 62% 76% 78% 77% 85% 

Target 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Other planning applications determined on time 

Page 19



Appendix A 

 

 

Income in Q1 is £275,847 – higher than Q1 from the previous year and better than budget target. 
 
26 planning applications were determined with time extensions in Q1 (26% of applications 
determined in the quarter). 
 
Complaints 
 

Complaint Service area Justified? Outcome 

Complaint about lack of 
public toilets in Municipal 
Buildings and staff response 

Customer 
Services 

Partly 

Apology issued if customer felt staff 
were unhelpful and unpolite. This 
matter will be addressed directly with 
staff. Advised customer that council 
does not provide toilet facilities as 
public convenience is located a short 
distance from building and there is no 
requirement to provide facilities. 

Complaint re lack of 
response to complaint letters 

Complaints No 

Large volume of complaint letters 
received. A full response has been 
provided setting out 3 options for 
resolution. Advised to refer to the 
LGO if unhappy with these options. 

Complaint about Councillors 
criticising officers as 
reported in the press 

Democratic 
Services 

No 

No independent evidence of criticism 
of officers. However, the matter has 
been raised with Group Leaders and 
new Standards requirements were 
being reviewed.  New process now in 
place for Councillor complaints. 

Complaint about call 
handling by Customer 
Services and Planning. 
Requesting to talk to 
someone to discuss next 
steps or signpost to 
information on website he 
cannot find. 

Development 
Management 

No 

Customer advised that there was no 
evidence of inappropriate behaviour 
by customer services team and that 
advice given by both customer 
services and planning was correct. 
More information will be added to 
website regarding pre-application 
advice. 

Complaint about how an 
enquiry made to the building 
control and planning 
department was handled 
leading to enforcement 
action 

Development 
Management 

No 

Although council not at fault BBC will 
update its response emails/letter to 
advise customers that if they cannot 
see the answer to their question on 
the Planning Portal they should 
submit a Certificate of Lawfulness.  

National Grid constructions 
on Bicker Fen 

Development 
Management 

No 

Advised to attend National Grid 
consultation exercise meeting. 
Complainant happy with these 
arrangements 

Complaint about alleged 
infringement of electoral law 
and BBC code of conduct 

Elections No 
Investigated by Lincolnshire Police; 
no evidence to support allegation and 
no further action recommended 

Complaint about not 
receiving postal vote prior to 
going on holiday 

Elections No 

Elector records checked, contact 
made with printers who despatched 
postal votes direct to Royal Mail. 
Advised to consider applying for a 
permanent postal vote. 

Complaint about the Election 
Count 

Elections No 
Returning Officer content with the 
efficiency and effectiveness of the 
count and no evidence to support the 

Page 20



Appendix A 

 

 

Complaint Service area Justified? Outcome 

complaint. 

Complaint to Monitoring 
Officer about governance of 
parish council 

Monitoring 
Officer 

No 

The Council’s remit in relation to 
Parish Councils is around conduct 
and complaints relating to breaches of 
the code of conduct. Recommended 
to contact the External Audit who has 
jurisdiction and details provided. 

Complaint about 
professionalism of a 
member of staff - 
confidential 

People 
Services 

No 

Inappropriate comments were made 
at a meeting but not personal about 
the complainant as perceived. An 
apology was made and the member 
of staff reminded of expected 
standard of behaviour. 

 
Councillor Complaints 
 

Complaint Outcome 

Comments made by a Councillor No breach 

Lack of representation by Ward Councillor No breach 

 
Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) annual review letter 2019 
 
16 decisions were made by the Ombudsman between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 

 1 incomplete or invalid 

 2 referred back for local resolution 

 10 closed after initial enquiries 

 3 detailed investigations 
 
Where investigations were undertaken by the Ombudsman, 2 were not upheld and 1 was upheld 
(33% compared to an average of 43% in similar authorities). 
 
Summary of upheld complaint: Mr and Mrs D complain about the Council's failure to take 
enforcement action against their neighbours. They also complain that personal information was 
published on the Council's Planning Register. The Ombudsman has found evidence of fault 
because the Council did incorrectly publish a document in 2016. She has upheld the complaint, 
because of the one instance of fault, and completed the investigation because the Council has 
previously apologised. 
 
In the upheld case, the Ombudsman found we had provided a satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached them. This compares to an average of 12% in similar authorities. 
 
The Ombudsman now also reports on compliance with their recommendations. No 
recommendations have had to be made to Boston Borough Council in this time period. 
 
The LGO have launched a new interactive map of council performance on their website at 
www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance. This shows annual performance data for all councils in 
England, with links to published decision statements and other useful information, focusing on 
compliance and service improvement. 
 
  

Page 21

http://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance


Appendix A 

 

 

Compliments 
 

Compliment Service area 

Letter of thanks received for Cllr Cooper regarding help provided Councillor 

The customer loved the way the phone was answered on switchboard. She 
appreciates the fact that the call was answered and she didn't have to listen 
to an automated service 

Customer 
services 

"We met two really helpful ladies in reception who did everything  they could 
to ascertain the tree owner (along with a gent who had knowledge of sourcing 
this information) We were supplied with possible owners, phone numbers 
ETC, and the next morning a follow up call, along with info as to sourcing a 
land registry on line search. A1 service to ourselves and to numerous other 
individuals who called into reception while we were there!" 

Customer 
services 

"I would also say that experience to date with the authority, notably staff 
attitudes to protect and do good works for Boston, a useful meeting 
previously with Clive Gibbon there, has put current works in context for 
clients  to 'Think Boston'" 

Planning and 
Economic 
Development 

 
  

Page 22



Appendix A 

 

 

Portfolio: Tourism, Arts, Culture and Heritage – Cllr Alistair Arundell 
 

Tourism, Arts, 
Culture and 
Heritage Portfolio: 
performance 
measures C

M
T

 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 - full year 2019/20 - Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Swim sessions at 
GMLC 

PP AA 2 EP 167,417 165,000  43,729 41,250  

Direct debit gym 
memberships 

PP AA 2 EP New measure 1,209 1,200  

Comment: Revised target for Q2 of 1380. Staff working hard offering promotions via social media 
which is seeing a positive impact. Changes planned on membership contracts to be introduced in 
Q2 subject to portfolio holder approval. Additional memberships and income will be seen following 
SLA agreement with Thrive Tribe, sessions to commence September 2019. 

 
Tourism, Arts, Culture and Heritage: trend measures 
 
Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

 
 
The automatic door counter failed in Q1 so a manual count has been used which is likely to be an 
underestimate. The unit has now been replaced. 
 
 
  

0 

1000 

2000 

3000 

4000 

5000 

6000 

Q1 
17/18 

Q2 
17/18 

Q3 
17/18 

Q4 
17/18 

Q1 
18/19 

Q2 
18/19 

Q3 
18/19 

Q4 
18/19 

Q1 
19/20 

Count 4881 5152 4563 3274 4766 4407 4864 3002 3718 

Guildhall Door Count 

Page 23



Appendix A 

 

 

Complaints 
 

Complaint 
Service 
area 

Justified? Outcome 

Standards of cleanliness 
and general building 
condition of Geoff Moulder 
Leisure Centre 

Leisure Yes 
Customer advised that works are planned 
and apologies offered 

Complaint about heritage 
emails not being 
monitored which resulted 
in complainant missing out 
on potential funding 

Heritage Partly 

Element regarding partner organisation's 
lack of communication with customer found 
to be justified. No evidence of wrongdoing 
on the Council's part but lessons learned on 
partnership working shared across the 
council 

Complaint about plants 
being damaged when 
grass cut 

Parks and 
Open 
Spaces 

No 
No evidence that plants were damaged. 
Staff made aware of presence of plants in 
this area.  

 
Compliments 
 

Compliment Service 
area 

Outdoor cinema - "Fantastic night! We all really enjoyed it. Very well organised too. 
The pizzas were delicious! Already looking forward to the next outdoor showing! Big 
thank you to everyone who worked hard to make tonight a success." 

Events 

"Had a great might watching the best musical film ever The Greatest Showman and 
this was my first time ever at an outdoor cinema loved it”. 

Events 

“It was wonderful, loved it”. Events 

“Loved it”. Events 

"What an incredible weekend, two days, two events. We would like to thank BBC 
events team for inviting us to be part of their outdoor Cinema event. Our team enjoyed 
hearing the crowd sing along to the fantastic songs from the greatest showman." 

Events 

"Very good Fair" Events 

"Thanks again for being absolutely fantastic at the Boston event, it went so well and 
we were really impressed with the venue and the support you provided." 

Guildhall 

Fascinating tour of Boston Guildhall by Luke Guildhall 

"He's a wonderful guide - I could listen to him all day" Guildhall 

  

Page 24



Appendix A 

 

 

Portfolio: Environmental Services – Cllr Yvonne Stevens 
 

Environmental 
Services Portfolio: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 - full year 2019/20 - Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

% of broadly compliant 
food businesses 

AF YS 2 CC 98.89% 95%  98.24% 95%  

% of food safety 
inspections completed 
against those required 
by the Food Law Code 
of Practice 

AF YS 2 CC 100% 100%  100% 100%  

Household waste 
reused, recycled, 
composted 

CA YS 3 EP 41.07% 41.52%  48.52% 50.00%  

Comment: The Council has agreed to undertake a trial on behalf of the Lincolnshire Waste 
Partnership to provide separate kerbside collection arrangements for paper and card to 3,229 
homes. The purpose of the trial is to seek to reduce contamination in our recycling waste and 
increase our recycling rates and the value of our recyclate 

Residual household 
waste per household 

CA YS 3 EP 553kg 540kg  130kg 129kg  

% of fly tip reports 
responded to within 2 
working days 

CA YS 3 EP 72% 85%  61% 88%  

Comment: 18.66% of fly tips were collected on the same day that they were reported. Members 
will recall the upsurge in flytipping reports at the end of last year and this has had a knock on 
adverse impact on performance in April of Q1. South Holland Housing also joined the partnership 
in April which saw an upturn in service requests in the SHDC area which has now stabilised. In 
comparison LHP are the largest contributor of fly tipping reports in the Boston area. Monthly 
performance has since recovered well to 70% in May, 90% in June and 97% in July. 
 

Environmental Services: trend measures 
Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

Apr 
18 

May 
18 

Jun 
18 

Jul 
18 

Aug 
18 

Sep 
18 

Oct 
18 

Nov 
18 

Dec 
18 

Jan 
19 

Feb 
19 

Mar 
19 

Apr 
19 

May 
19 

Jun 
19 

BBC 31% 33% 33% 30% 29% 31% 33% 36% 36% 28% 29% 25% 32% 29% 27% 

Lincs average 31% 31% 32% 30% 27% 30% 34% 34% 34% 30% 30% 30% 30% 28% 26% 

Contamination in Domestic Recycling 

Page 25



Appendix A 

 

 

Commercial waste: 
 

Trend measures 
2019/20 - 

Q1 

% growth in income in commercial waste service compared to previous year +26% 

% growth in number of commercial waste customers compared to previous year +22% 
 

 

 
 

Breakdown of ‘other household’ items: 

 Furniture: 36 

 Wood: 27 

 Mattresses: 22 

 Textiles: 17 

 Toys: 12 

 Garden items: 3 
 

This does not correspond exactly to the number of ‘other household’ items overall because there 
may be multiple types of items in one ‘other household’ incident. 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

15/16: Q1 16/17: Q1 17/18: Q1 18/19: Q1 19/20: Q1 

Number 242 287 267 313 236 

Number of fly tip incidents 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

Fly tip incidents by type 

18/19: Q1 19/20: Q1 

Page 26



Appendix A 

 

 

 
 

Complaints 
 

Complaint Service area Justified? Outcome 

Complaint about a 
service request to 
investigate noise 
nuisance 

Environmental 
Health 

No 
Officer acted entirely correcting in light of 
potential adult safeguarding issues 

Allegation of 
harassment 

Operations No 
Investigated but no evidence to support 
the allegation. 

Allegation of ongoing 
harassment by 
refuse collection 
crew 

Operations No 

No evidence to support this ongoing 
complaint - advised to refer to the LGO if 
still not satisfied. Previously reviewed by 
the LGO and no evidence of wrongdoing. 
This will be referred to the Monitoring 
Officer to consider if this is a vexatious 
complaint if there is further 
correspondence without evidence. 

Complaint about 
waste collection 

Operations No 

Investigation didn't highlight any 
wrongdoing by the refuse crew. CCTV 
footage reviewed, crew reminded of 
appropriate behaviour. 

Non collection of 
brown bin on three 
occasions 

Operations No 
Missed bin recollected each time and 
measures are now in place to  ensure the 
bin is not missed again 

Non collection of 
bulky waste, request 
for refund. 

Operations No 
Customer advised procedures were 
followed and no evidence that collection 
information was not given as alleged 

 
  

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

Single Item Car Boot Small Van Transit Van Tipper Significant 

18/19: Q1 79 60 87 66 19 2 

19/20: Q1 19 40 78 31 11 0 

Fly tip incidents by volume 

Page 27



Appendix A 

 

 

Compliments 
 

Compliment Service 
area 

"Thank you for your email. It is so nice to deal with somebody who does what they 
say they are going to do. You are a very lovely person only wish all customer service 
were more like you. Thank you so much for your help in this matter." 

Garden 
waste 

Compliments to the bin men who emptied her bin on Monday, who went above and 
beyond to help her. 

Operations 

Impressed that instance of fly-tipping was cleared same day that it was reported. Operations 

"Thank you for arranging for me to go out with the bin lorries in Boston – and please 
thank the staff as well. I realise now how hard they work!" 

Operations 

Re: assisted bin collection eligibility - Thank you so much, it helps me no end, bless 
you. 

Operations 

Compliments to the driver who emptied her bin today. “I’ve never seen driving like it, 
he was an absolutely fantastic driver. He reversed all the way down the street with 
cars parked either side, weaving in and out, he was brilliant” 

Operations 

 

  

Page 28



Appendix A 

 

 

Portfolio: Town Centre – Cllr Chelcei Sharman 
 

Town Centre 
Portfolio: 
performance 
measures C

M
T

 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 - full year 2019/20 - Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Car parking 
income against 
monthly profile* 

PP CS 3 EP £867,417 £860,000  £223,966 £204,750  

Comment: The work carried out at the end of last year is still working with the car parking service, 
the new machines, whilst not faultless, are an improvement to the older model and MiPermit 
parking is proving more popular than originally expected. 

Car Parking 
permit income vs 
budget 

PP CS 3 EP £100,482 £87,350  £18,605 £16,520  

Market Income PP CS 3 EP £144,450 £180,000  £32,140 £40,210  

Comment: Implementation of the task and finish recommendations has not resulted in a 
breakeven position. The markets income audit gave High assurance that appropriate controls are 
in place, and operating as expected, to manage the collection, banking and reconciliation of 
income. There were no recommendations from the audit. 
 

Town Centre: trend measures 
 

Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

 
 

                                                
*
 This includes income from tickets purchased via the MiPermit app 

£0.00  

£5,000.00  

£10,000.00  

£15,000.00  

£20,000.00  

£25,000.00  

£30,000.00  

£35,000.00  

£40,000.00  

£45,000.00  

A
rt

ill
er

y 
R

o
w

 

B
ar

ga
te

 G
re

en
 

B
o

to
lp

h
 S

tr
ee

t 

B
u

o
y 

Ya
rd

 

C
at

tl
e 

M
ar

ke
t 

C
u

st
o

m
 H

o
u

se
 Q

u
ay

 

D
o

u
gh

ty
 Q

u
ay

 

G
eo

rg
e 

St
re

et
 

M
ar

ke
t 

P
la

ce
 

M
au

d
 S

tr
ee

t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 B
u

ild
in

gs
 

P
u

m
p

 S
q

u
ar

e 
 

So
u

th
 S

q
u

ar
e 

Sp
ay

n
e 

R
o

ad
  

St
an

ila
n

d
 

St
at

io
n

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

St
 G

eo
rg

e'
s 

R
o

ad
 

Tu
n

n
ar

d
 S

tr
ee

t 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
P

la
ce

 

W
es

t 
En

d
  

W
id

e 
B

ar
ga

te
  

Income by car park 

18/19: Q1 19/20:Q1 

Page 29



Appendix A 

 

 

Car Park  2018/19: Q1 2019/20: Q1 Difference 

Artillery Row £2,734.21 £3,415.29 £681.08 

Bargate Green £22,986.49 £26,256.32 £3,269.83 

Botolph Street £3,820.90 £3,645.15 -£175.75 

Buoy Yard £1,970.74 £2,225.38 £254.64 

Cattle Market £37,186.19 £43,643.05 £6,456.86 

Custom House Quay £14,198.31 £14,071.50 -£126.81 

Doughty Quay £8,231.27 £7,702.66 -£528.61 

George Street £993.95 £956.92 -£37.03 

Market Place £17,582.60 £17,193.85 -£388.75 

Maud Street £6,399.00 £6,117.69 -£281.31 

Municipal Buildings £531.29 £534.62 £3.33 

Pump Square  £11,755.30 £11,190.95 -£564.35 

South Square £5,137.52 £5,069.95 -£67.57 

Spayne Road  £2,436.04 £2,343.71 -£92.33 

Staniland £8,902.78 £9,779.53 £876.75 

Station Approach £3,060.15 £2,868.65 -£191.50 

St George's Road £24,529.47 £22,747.77 -£1,781.70 

Tunnard Street £7,830.48 £8,386.33 £555.85 

Victoria Place £2,872.54 £3,153.62 £281.08 

West End  £23,417.56 £26,075.12 £2,657.56 

Wide Bargate  £5,081.05 £6,587.90 £1,506.85 

Total  £211,657.84 £223,965.96 £12,308.12 
 

In the main, town centre parking is up. 
 

 
 

0 

500 

1000 

1500 

2000 

2500 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

19/20: 
Q1 

Average footfall 1925 2008 2121 1680 1968 1930 1957 1754 1754 

Average pedestrian footfall 

Page 30



Appendix A 

 

 

Complaints 
 

Complaint 
Service 
area 

Justified? Outcome 

Central Park 
men’s toilets, no 
working locks for 
at least two 
weeks. 

Cleaning & 
Caretaking 

Yes Repairs will be carried out as soon as possible. 

Complaint about 
lack of access to 
disabled toilets 

Cleaning & 
Caretaking 

Yes 

Explanation given as to why Municipal Buildings 
toilets were closed and why the radar key does not 
work in the public toilets, this was due to repeated 
vandalism. Replacement lock on order and 
customer advised of community toilet scheme 
locations to use. 

Complaint re 
Gents toilets in 
Central Park 

Cleaning & 
Caretaking 

Yes 

Toilet Attendant spoken to. Facility cleaned on 6 
occasions throughout day in question between 
7.50am and 4pm as shown on Attendants’ check 
sheet. Broken hand dryer and lock previously 
reported to Property Services, items on order. 

Complaint re car 
parking machine 
not providing a 
refund 

Car parking No 

Using information provided, it was concluded that 
the coins did drop down into the reject slot, but 
unfortunately the customer was unaware of its 
location in order to retrieve them. Explained to the 
customer how the machines work and how it was 
unlikely the coins weren't rejected. Customer 
issued with two 1-day parking permits for 
inconvenience and a leaflet advising where the 
permits can be used. 

Complaint about 
the condition of 
Central Park play 
area 

Parks and 
Open 
Spaces 

No 

Appropriate cleaning and maintenance is in place 
but this will be reviewed in light of the concerns 
raised to ensure that resources are prioritised in 
key areas e.g. the play area 

Complaint about 
the state of the 
grounds at the 
Cemetery 

Parks and 
Open 
Spaces 

No Site visit arranged; complaint resolved 

 
Compliments 
 

Compliment Service area 

Thank you to the grounds maintenance team for all their hard work in Boston 
Parks and Open 
Spaces 

Hanse event - "The tent guys were extremely obliging and we really are 
grateful to them. They went the extra mile for us. Julian and his colleague 
were very helpful and flexible with putting them up. The day was a great 
success all round." 

Town Centre 

  

Page 31



Appendix A 

 

 

Portfolio: Housing and Communities – Cllr Martin Griggs 
 

Housing and Communities Portfolio: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 - full 
year 

2019/20 - 
Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Housing completions – annual target 310 AF MG 2 CC 429 310  74 77  

Number of affordable homes delivered 
(gross) 

AF MG 2 CC 171 170  0 0  

Number of non-local authority owned 
empty properties returned into occupation 

AF MG 2 CC 91 60  35 15  

Improved Housing Standards AF MG 2 CC 51 200  27 25  

 
Housing and Communities: trend measures 
 

Corporate Priority 2: People 
 

 
 

Complaints 
 

Complaint 
Service 
area 

Justified? Outcome 

Complaint about 
housing bidding 
system 

Housing No 

Customer’s concerns addressed and advice 
provided. Working with Boston Homechoice partners 
to review internal eligibility criteria and application on 
the bidding system   

Concerns re HMO 
legislation 

Housing No 
Customer advised the information is available on the 
website and the link was provided.  

  

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

500 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

19/20: 
Q1 

New apps 353 433 320 453 379 356 320 366 347 

New housing register applications 

Page 32



Appendix A 

 

 

Portfolio: Regulatory – Cllr Paul Skinner 
 

Regulatory Portfolio: 
performance measures 

C
M

T
 l
e

a
d

 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2018/19 - full year 2019/20 - Q1 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Average time taken to 
respond to FOI/EIR 
requests (working days) 

MS PS 4 CC 8 20  8 20  

Comment: 370 information requests were received in the quarter; 5 went beyond the 20 working 
day deadline  (1%) - 2 were responded to in 21 working days; 2 in 23 working days; and 1 in 38 
working days due to complex exemptions being required 

Average time taken to 
respond to Subject Access 
requests (calendar days) 

MS PS 4 CC 
1 

month 
1 

month 
 

1 
month 

1 
month 

 

 
Regulatory: trend measures 
 

Corporate Priority 2: People 
 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Number of taxi drivers suspended/revoked 3 38 39 39 0 0 0 1 2 

Comment: One at a hearing and one using officer delegation. 

Number of vehicles suspended/revoked 8 18 23 29 5 10 11 24 5 

Number of taxi driver/vehicle hearings 1 1 3 8 3 7 8 9 2 

Comment: One revocation and one licence refused. 

Number of premises licences revoked 0 1 5 2 0 1 2 2 2 

Number of Licensing Act 2003 hearings 1 4 4 6 2 5 7 11 5 

 
Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

 
 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Q1 154 106 114 98 73 70 57 

Number of CCTV directed/assisted arrests 

Page 33



Appendix A 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Number of Stage 1 Antisocial Behaviour 
(ASB) letters 

14 11 21 26 19 15 22 25 13 

Number of Stage 2 Antisocial Behaviour 
(ASB) letters 

7 7 5 7 3 6 1 6 5 

Number of Acceptable Behaviour 
Agreements (ABAs) 

1 5 6 0 1 0 0 0 6 

Number of Civil Injunctions secured 0 1 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 

Number of Community Protection Notice 
Warnings issued 

0 0 0 0 0 5 1 2 0 

Number of Community Protection Notices 
(CPNs) 

1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 

Number of Criminal Behaviour Orders issued 
(CBOs) 

New measure 2 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Q1 43 52 70 70 60 51 59 

Number of CCTV evidential packages 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Q1 354 228 324 215 287 184 138 

Number of CCTV incidents recorded 

Page 34



Appendix A 

 

 

 
Complaints 
 

Complaint 
Service 
area 

Justified? Outcome 

Complaint about information 
missing from Licensing page on 
website 

Licensing No 
Letter advising complaint not 
justified and that information had 
been uploaded. 

 
Compliments 
 

Compliment Service area 

"Visit from building control today would just like to say thank you for being on 
time and looking after us" 

Building Control 

Dementia activities - "Wow, what an amazing programme!!  So much going 
on and in so many accessible easy to get to places.  Well done to all 
involved.  You have obviously worked so hard to get things organised." 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Re: craft market and dementia awareness day; "My grandkids loved it the 
arts and crafts and free face painting Thankyou" 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Dementia event: "An amazing contribution for the people of Boston, proud to 
be part of the Alliance and massive thanks to those who do so much. May the 
good work continue" 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

 
RIPA 
 
The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) regulates the powers of public bodies to 
carry out surveillance and investigation. There were no RIPA applications in Q1. 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

 
 

Risk Q1 2019/20 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Flood risk 

The risk of 
flooding may 
adversely 
impact on the 
Council's ability 
to achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment; 
Lincolnshire 
Flood Risk 
Strategy; 
working closely 
with the 
Environment 
Agency; Local 
Plan; plans for 
the Boston 
Barrier (which 
will reduce risk 
of tidal flooding 
from 2% to 
0.3%); 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
manage flood 
risk and its 
impact; the risk 
score will only 
reduce when 
the Boston 
Barrier is in 
place 

N/A N/A Amber 

C
P

1
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Growth is vital 
to the future 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Proactive 
approach to 
growth; 
economic 
development 
plan 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Implementation 
of the Economic 
Development 
Plan 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
lack of 
growth to 
possible due 
to ED Plan 

Green 

P
age 37



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Housing 

Lack of housing 
delivery, across 
tenures that 
means that the 
range of 
housing needs 
that exist 
within the 
Borough 
cannot be met. 
 
A lack of 
delivery will 
have 
overarching 
negative 
impacts that 
affect the 
economy, 
business 
confidence and 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people and 
meet the wider 
housing needs 
of the 
community;  

AF 

Local Plan. 
Delivery of 
Housing Strategy 
Actions. 
Developing 
Transformation 
Programme to 
focus on wider 
housing enabling 
and housing 
delivery. 
 

4 
Almost 
certain 

3 
Major 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
drive the 
delivery of new 
Housing  

Monitoring of 
total housing 
delivery.   
 
Monitoring of 
affordable 
housing 
delivery. 

N/A Red 

P
age 38



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Welfare 

Risk that 
‘universal 
support – 
delivered 
locally’ will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people 

PJ 

'Universal 
support - 
delivered locally' 
project work 
underway with 
partners to 
ensure support 
and training is in 
place for staff 
and local people 

2 
Possible 

2 
Minor 
impact 

4 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on the 
'universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
with partners 

Monitor impact 
of universal 
credit 

N/A Green 

C
P

2
 

Health 

Risk that health 
issues will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect people; 
long term 
health issues, 
deprivation, 
local 
perceptions, 
apathy, 
unsustainable 
health services 

PP 
Partnership 
working with 
health 

3 
Probable 

2 
Minor 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
deliver the 
Boston Health 
& Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Partnership 
work on the 
Boston Health & 
Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

N/A Green 

P
age 39



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

3
 

Town centre 

The future 
sustainability 
of the town 
centre in terms 
of retail, 
housing and 
car parking will 
have an impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to achieve its 
corporate 
prosperity and 
place priority 

PP 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task and 
finish groups 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 
Tolerate N/A N/A Green 

C
P

4
 

Population 
change 

There is a risk 
that population 
change will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priorities of 
people & 
prosperity 

AF 

Inclusive Boston 
projects; 
Controlling 
Migration Fund 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Tolerate 

 Project 
monitoring 

N/A Green 

P
age 40



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Budget 

There is a risk 
around the 
long term 
balancing of 
the budget 
with economic 
and funding 
uncertainty 
impacting on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring; 
refresh of 
transformation 
programme; 
maintenance of 
the value list 

3 
Probable 

4 
Critical 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have a robust 
budget setting 
and MTFP 
process in 
place; continue 
to drive the 
delivery of the 
refreshed 
transformation 
programme; be 
less risk averse 
when making 
decisions about 
transformation 

Delivery of 
MTFP; quarterly 
reporting; 
implementation 
of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A Amber 

C
P

4
 

Capacity 

There is a risk 
that capacity 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

KN 

Recruitment and 
retention 
project; 
succession 
planning; HR 
policies and 
procedures; 
good 
management 
practice; 
member training 
and 
development; 
there is capacity 
in priority areas 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
train and 
develop staff 
and members 
and maximise 
resources by 
prioritising and 
shared services 

Workforce 
planning; 
succession 
planning 

N/A Green 

P
age 41



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 Transformation 

Programme 

There is a risk 
that the next 
phase of the 
transformation 
programme 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
deliver public 
service 

PJ 

Transformation 
Programme; 
project 
management 
methodology; 
governance in 
place via 
Transformation 
Board and 
quarterly 
reporting 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A Amber 

C
P

4
 

Brexit 

The outcome 
of the 
referendum 
has resulted in 
economic 
uncertainty 
and there may 
be other 
changes 
around 
migration, the 
local 
workforce, and 
the legal 
framework in 
which we 
operate that 
are also 
uncertain at 
this time 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have robust 
financial plans 
and monitoring 
in place 
pending more 
clarity 

Quarterly 
financial 
reporting 

N/A Green 

P
age 42



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll Civil 

contingency 
risks 

There are 
community 
risks which will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

AF 

Community Risk 
Register 
monitored by 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 
(LRF) 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with the 
LRF 

Working in 
partnership with 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

N/A Green 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Compliance 

There is a risk 
that non-
compliance 
with legal 
requirements / 
governance / 
internal 
controls will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

MS 

Internal controls, 
policies and 
procedures; 
annual 
governance 
statement; 
internal audit; 
safeguarding 
policy and 
procedures; 
ongoing work to 
improve contract 
management; 
Member training 
programme and 
corporate 
training 
programme in 
place; revised 
scheme of 
delegation; 
effective 
complaints 
management 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
ensure 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements, 
governance 
and internal 
controls 

Internal audit 
reporting 
 
Member Code 
of Conduct 

N/A Green 

P
age 43



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Reputation 

There is a 
reputational 
risk to the 
Council which 
could impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to operate 
effectively 

KN 

Internal and 
external 
communication, 
press releases, 
bulletins, 
website, social 
media; policy, 
protocol and 
training for 
speaking to the 
press 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
communicate 
effectively and 
work with the 
press to 
portray the 
Council 
accurately 

Production of 
press releases, 
bulletins; use of 
social media; 
development of 
Visit Boston, 
Think Boston, 
My Boston 

N/A Green 

 

Guidance on scoring for information 
 
Risk appetite categories: 
 

 
 

P
age 44



Appendix B 

 
 

 
 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Finance Q1 2019/20 – appendix C 

 

1 The National Picture – key financial events during Quarter 1 2019/20 

 
The main issues affecting the Council in the first quarter of 2019/20 were: 

 Bank base rate remained at 0.75% (since 2 August 2018);  

 Not leaving the European Union on 29 March 2019, meaning uncertainty continues; and 

 Local Election held on 2 May 2019. 
 

2 Revenue Budget   

 
Table 1 – Net spend for the year against budget by Service Area: 
 

Service Area Net 
Budget 

 
2019/20 

£000 

Projected 
Outturn 

 
2019/20 

£000 

Variance 
(under 
spend)/ 

overspend 
£000 

Summary of Main Variances 

Chief Executive 309 309        -  

Deputy Chief Executive  899 869 (30) Development Management 

Chief Finance Officer 793 793 -  

Head of Corporate 
Services 

 
1,113 

 
1,113 

 
- 

 

Head of Regulatory 
Services 

 
1,915 

 
2,089 

 
174 

CCTV, Housing Grants, 
Controlling Migration Fund 
(CMF) award - homelessness 

Head of Operations  897 897 -  

Head of Place and Space (32) 8 40 Leisure Pool, Markets, Parking 

BTAC    680 680 -  

Net Service 
Expenditure 

 
6,574 

 
6,758 

 
184 

 

Drainage Board Precepts 1,898 1,898 -  

Direct Revenue 
Financing of Capital 

 
1,999 

 
875 

 
(1,124) 

 
Note 8 

Investment Income (92) (92) -  

Income Receivable from 
Property Funds 

 
(619) 

 
(645) 

 
(26) 

 
Note 7 

Interest Payable 500 494 (6) Note 7 

Net Transfer to 
Earmarked Reserves 355 1,610 1,255 Note 6 

Total Expenditure 10,615 10,898                    283  

     

Financing     

Council Tax  (4,328) (4,328) -  

Business Rates (4,419) (4,402) 17 Levy Payment 

Renewable Energy  (111) (111) -  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

 
(1,757) 

 
(1,999) 

 
 (242) 

Business Rates Relief 
Reimbursement S31 

Net Overspend  - 58 58  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



Table 2 – Net spend for the year against budget by Portfolio Holder Area: 
 

Portfolio Holder Area Net 
Budget 
2019/20 

 
      £000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

 
       £000 

Variance 
(under 
spend)/ 

overspend 
£000 

Summary of Main Variances 

Housing, Property & 
Community 

 
1,358 

 
1,452 

 
94 

Housing Grants, Controlling 
Migration Fund (CMF) award - 
homelessness 

Tourism, Arts, Culture & 
Heritage 

 
303 

 
343 

 
40 

 
Leisure Pool 

Town Centre (573) (573) - Markets, Parking (net to nil) 

Environment 1,371 1,371 -  

Economic Development & 
Planning 

 
885 

 
855 

 
(30) 

 
Development Management 

Leader 2,106 2,106 -  

Regulatory 444 524 80 CCTV 

BTAC 680 680 -  

Net Service  
Expenditure 

 
6,574 

 
6,758 

 
184 

 

Drainage Board Precepts 1,898 1,898 -  

Direct Revenue Financing 
of Capital 

 
1,999 

 
875 

 
(1,124) 

 
Note 8 

Investment Income (92) (92) -  

Income Receivable from 
Property Funds 

 
(619) 

 
(645) 

 
(26) 

 
Note 7 

Interest Payable 500 494 (6) Note 7 

Net Transfer to 
Earmarked Reserves 355 1,610 1,255 Note 6 

Total Expenditure 10,615 10,898                    283  

     

Financing     

Council Tax (4,328) (4,328) -  

Business Rates (4,419) (4,402) 17 Levy Payment 

Renewable Energy (111) (111) -  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

 
(1,757) 

 
(1,999) 

 
(242) 

Business Rates Relief 
Reimbursement S31 

Net Overspend  - 58 58  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



Table 3 – Net spend for the year against budget by Corporate Priority: 
 

Priority Net 
Budget 
2019/20 

£000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

£000 

Variance 
(under)/ 

overspend 
£000 

Summary of Main Variances 

Prosperity 1,061 1,101 40 Markets, Leisure, 
Development Management 

People 1,033 1,127 94 Housing Grants, Controlling 
Migration Fund (CMF) award - 
homelessness 

Place 1,636 1,716 80 CCTV 

Public Service 2,164 2,134 (30) Parking 

BTAC 680 680 -  

Net Service  
Expenditure 

 
6,574 

 
6,758 

 
184 

 

Drainage Board Precepts 1,898 1,898 -  

Direct Revenue 
Financing of Capital 

 
1,999 

 
875 

 
(1,124) 

 
Note 8 

Investment Income (92) (92) -  

Income Receivable from 
Property Funds 

 
(619) 

 
(645) 

 
(26) 

 
Note 7 

Interest Payable 500 494 (6) Note 7 

Net Transfer to 
Earmarked Reserves 355 1,610 1,255 Note 6 

Total Expenditure 10,615 10,898                    283  

     

Financing     

Council Tax (4,328) (4,328) -  

Business Rates (4,419) (4,402) 17 Levy Payment 

Renewable Energy (111) (111) -  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

 
(1,757) 

 
(1,999) 

 
(242) 

Business Rates Relief 
Reimbursement S31 

Net Overspend  - 58 58  

Page 49



3. Variations to budget 

 

 Budget 
2019/20 

 
£’000 

Variance 
2019/20 

 
£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 
£’000 

Comments 

Total Service Expenditure  6,574    

Additional Costs     

Leisure Pool  10  Equipment purchase & software upgrade  

Housing – Advice and Homelessness, grant award  161  Rapid Rehousing Pathway 

Housing – Advice and Homelessness, grant award  145  Rough Sleeper Initiative 

Housing – Advice and Homelessness, grant award  234  CMF Countywide Project 

  550   

     

Reduced Costs  -   

     

Additional Income     

Development Management  (30)  Application Fees above Year To Date (YTD) 
budget 

Parking  (30)  Q1 YTD Income above YTD budget 

Housing – Advice and Homelessness, as above  (161)  Rapid Rehousing Pathway 

Housing – Advice and Homelessness, as above  (145)  Rough Sleeper Initiative 

Housing – Advice and Homelessness, as above  (187)  Controlling Migration Fund Countywide Project 

Housing – Advice and Homelessness  (40)  Flexible Homelessness Support Grant 

  (593)   

     

Reduced Income     

CCTV 
 

80 
 

ELDC (BT operational issues) expected share 
savings delayed until 2020/21. 

Leisure Pool  20  Monthly member fees. Action Plan in place. 

Leisure Pool  10  Swimming lessons. Action Plan in place. 

Markets  30  Projected outturn below initial estimate. 

Housing – Housing Enforcement  87  Housing Grant  

  227   

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE           6,758  

     

P
age 50



Other Operating Income and Expenditure 3,686    

     

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital  (1,124)   

Income Receivable from Property Funds  (26)   

Interest Payable  (6)   

        2,530  

     

Net Transfer to Earmarked Reserves 355 1,255 1,610  

     

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 10,615 283 10,898  

     

     

Financing (10,615)    

Business Rates   17  Levy Payment to Lincolnshire Pool 

Non Ring Fenced Government Grant  (242)  Business Rates Relief Reimbursement S31 

   (10,840)  

     

Net Overspend - 58 58  

P
age 51



4 Controlling Migration Fund 

 
Table 4 shows the total funding received on the project, which covers a 2-year period and the 
cumulative actual expenditure to 30 June 2019 
 
Table 4 – Breakdown of Bid and Cumulative Spend to June 2019 
 

Spend Category Breakdown 
of Bid 

 
£’000 

Spend to 
30 Jun 
2019 
£000 

A Passion for People Project 80            52 
Community Leadership, Advice 
& Integration 

 
467 

 
247 

Adding Value to Learning 114 86 
Doing what’s important for our 
community 

 
726 

 
268 

Total 1,387 653 

 

5 Trading Income  

 
The Council has a number of demand led budget areas, which are reliant on receiving 
income for services provided. Markets and Leisure were below budget. These areas are 
included in the following table: 
 
Table 5 – Trading Income: 
 

Income Area Budget 
 

£000 

Projected 
Outturn 

£000 

Variance 
 

£000 

Building Control  (184) (184) - 
Planning  (515) (545) 30 
Land Charges  (99) (99) - 
Licensing  (122) (122) - 
Garden Waste (408) (408) - 
Bereavement  (828) (828) - 
Commercial Waste (249) (249) - 
Parking  (990) (1,020) 30 
Markets  (160) (130) (30) 
Leisure (963) (933) (30) 

Total (4,518) (4,518) - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



6 Earmarked Reserves 

 
The following table shows the level of earmarked reserves held at the beginning of the 
year, movements in the year, and the projected position at 31 March 2020: 
 
Table 6 – Earmarked Reserves 
 

Reserve Balance 
1 April 
2019 

 
£000 

Previously 
Approved 
Movement 

 
£000 

     
Proposed 
Movement 

 
£000 

Projected 
Balance 
31 March 

2020 
£000 

Capital Funding  4,424 (432) 1,172 5,164 
Transformation Reserve 1,091 (39) (12) 1,040 
Repairs and Renewals  717 (116) (9) 592 
ICT Reserve 394 (45) (27) 322 
Housing Reserve 1,178 (279) (94) 805 
Controlling Migration  547 (530) - 17 
Insurance Reserve 290 - - 290 
Risk Mitigation Reserve 275 751 - 1,026 
Tax Reserve  1,618 1,045 225 2,888 

Total 10,534 355 1,255 12,144 

  
Notes 

 Capital Funding Reserve – the proposed movement in reserve reflects changes 
to in-year financing requirements associated with the revised capital programme, 
as set out in section 8: the majority of which relates to replacement of the Refuse 
Freighter fleet. 

 Housing Reserve – the proposed movement in reserve reflects the funding 
required on the CMF Countywide project and transfers to cover housing net 
expenditure in year. 

 Tax Reserve – additional S31 grant for Business Rates based on current 
calculation on estimated small business rate and other reliefs and increase in 
projected levy payment to the Lincolnshire Pool. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
F1 To approve the reserve movements detailed in Table 6.  
 

 

7 Treasury Management 

 

At 30 June 2019, the Council held £13.470m in cash investments (£11.268m at 31 March) and 
£20.580m in property funds (£20.627m at 31 March).  
 

           The Council budgeted to receive £711,000 in investment income in 2019/20 comprising 
£619,000 from Property Funds and £92,000 from cash investments. As at 30 June 2019, total 
investment income for the year is now estimated to be £737,000 comprising £645,000 from 
Property Funds and £92,000 from cash investments.  
 
In 2019/20 quarter 1, the Council achieved an average net return (after deduction of 
management charges) of 3.29% from the Property Fund purchases and 0.75% from cash 
investments.  
 
 
 

Page 53



 
Graph 1 – Comparison of investment income budget to actual  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Table 7 - Property Funds as at 30 June 2019  
    

Property 
Fund 

Sum 
Invested 

 
 
 

£000 

Fair Value 
31 March 

2019 
 
 

£000 

Fair Value 
30 June 

2019 
 
 

£000 

Gain 
/(Loss) 
in Q1 

2019-20 
 

£000 

Black Rock  4,500 4,581 4,561 (20) 

Schroders 4,250 4,344 4,343 (1) 

Threadneedle 4,239 4,102 4,079 (23) 

M&G 4,000 3,836 3,806 (30) 

AEW 4,000 3,764 3,791 27 

TOTAL 20,989 20,627 20,580 (47) 

 
External Borrowing 
 
At the start of the 2019/20 financial year, the Council’s total long-term borrowing was £16.449m, 
of which £15.449m is from the Public Works Loans Board and was used to part-finance the 
2018/19 property fund acquisitions of £19.989m. Total annual interest payable on external 
borrowing is estimated at £494,000. 
 
No additional borrowing was undertaken during the quarter ended 30 June 2019. 
 

 £737,000  
 £711,000  

£0 

£100,000 

£200,000 

£300,000 

£400,000 

£500,000 

£600,000 

£700,000 

£800,000 

Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Month 

Actual, Budget , and Projected Investment Income  

Projected Outturn 

Budget 

Actual 

In
te

re
st

 r
ec

ei
va

b
le

 

Page 54



 

8  Capital  

 
The following table shows the approved capital programme for 2019/20 as reported to Council 
on 28 February 2019 and subsequently slippage from 2018/19 as presented in the outturn 
report in June 2019, plus other known in-year changes together with actual spend to the end of 
quarter 1:  
 
Table 8 –Capital Programme for 2019/20 
 

Scheme 2019/20 
Approved 
Program. 
Feb. 2019 

£’000 

2019/20 
Program. 

with 
slippage 
£’000 

In Year 
Changes 

 
 

£’000 

Revised 
Program. 

 
 

£’000 

Actuals 
to 

30 June 
2019 
£’000 

Scheme      
Disabled Facilities Grants* 280 612 427 1,039 40 
Housing Strategy 272 272 - 272 - 
Municipal Buildings Alterations  5 5 - 5 - 
Housing Scheme – Julian’s 
Yard/Ingelow Avenue 

 
25 

 
25 

 
- 

 
25 

 
- 

Marginal Viability Fund** 3,500 3,500 - 3,500 - 
CCTV-System upgrade 43 43 - 43 - 
Resurfacing and Footpath 
Improvements 

 
23 

 
23 

 
- 

 
23 

 
- 

Estates Works 10 10 - 10 - 
Public Convenience Refresh 
Alterations 

15 15 - 15 - 

PSICA (Shop Front Scheme)      
          23 High Street, Boston 
          49 Market Place, Boston 
Town Centre Heritage Scheme 

- 
- 

400 

34 
47 

400 

- 
- 
- 

34 
47 

400 

33 
39 

- 
Enhanced Play Equipment and 
Recreational Facilities – Garfits Lane 

 
- 

 
73 

 
- 

 
73 

 
- 

Multi Use Games Area 269 269 - 269 - 
GMLC Investment 57 57 - 57 - 
Information Technology Refresh 45 72 - 72 13 
Vehicle Replacement      
    Ford Transit Tipper Van 22 22 - 22 - 
    Grounds Tractor   60 60 - 60 - 
    Refuse Vehicles*** 1,225 1,225 (1,225) - - 
St John’s Depot Accommodation - 5 - 5 3 
Upgrade to Bartec Collective - 18 - 18 1 
Crematorium – Canopy for Floral 
tribute area 

 
25 

 
25 

 
- 

 
25 

 
- 

Crematorium – Provision of Parking 
and Resurfacing Works 

 
65 

 
65 

 
- 

 
65 

 
- 

Crematorium-Install Air Conditioning 25 25 (15) 10 - 
Boston Masterplan-Feasibility Study - 27 - 27 - 
GMLC Boiler Replacement - - 45 45 - 

 6,366 6,929 (768) 6,161 129 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
*Disabled Facility Grants 
 
Total resources for Disabled Facility Grants, including approved Better Care Funding of 
£0.558m for 2019/20, is £1.039m. The waiting list has been cleared, although there is still a 
significant number and value of cases being progressed. The speed of this is dependent on the 
clients’ agents, availability and capacity of contractors.  
 
At Quarter 1, the Council has commitments of £0.159m with a further £0.450m in progress of 
being specified and evaluated by the Lincolnshire Home Independence Agency. In addition, a 
further £41,000 has been committed to a joint project with other Lincolnshire District Councils 
and Lincolnshire County Council.  
 
**Marginal Viability Fund 
 
The £3.5m Housing Infrastructure Fund contract with Homes England was signed in July 2019 
for the development of Boston United’s new Community Stadium, a new major road junction, 
new businesses and 212 new homes. The drawdown of funds is expected in four tranches, 
equating to one payment of £1.682m in Quarter 3, 2019/20 with three further payments totalling 
£1.818m also currently expected in 2019/20. 
 
***Vehicle Replacements – Refuse Vehicles 
 
The capital programme for 2019/20 includes £1.225m for Refuse Collection Vehicle (RCV) fleet 
replacement. The Council has access to the Lincolnshire Vehicle Procurement Framework 
managed by Procurement Lincolnshire and this framework will be used to replace the RCV fleet.  
 
Following recent discussions, timing of the fleet’s replacement has been amended to 2020/21 to 
coincide with tendering for future vehicle maintenance arrangements. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
F2 To approve the updated capital programme as detailed in Table 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Financing 
 

2018/19 
Approved 
Program. 
Feb. 2019 

£’000 

2018/19 
Program. 

with 
slippage 
£’000 

In Year 
Changes 

 
 

£’000 

Revised 
Program. 

 
 

£’000 

Actuals 
to 

30 June 
2019 
£’000 

External Grants and Contributions 4,367 4,859 427 5,286 106 
Capital Reserve 1,531 1,554 (1,195) 359 3 
I.T. Reserve 45 72 - 72 13 
Transformation Reserve - 12 - 12 - 
Repairs and Renewals Reserve 151 160 - 160 7 
Housing Reserve 272 272 - 272 - 

 6,366 6,929 (768) 6,161 129 

Page 56



9 Consultancy costs 

 
Where specialist work is required, the Council seeks support from third parties when necessary.   
Table 9 – Consultants 
 

Consultant Q1 
£000 

Activity 

Link Asset Services 2 Treasury services  

Anderson and Glenn 6 Architectural consultant  

   

Elysian Associates 1 VAT Consultancy Services  

Heritage Trust of 
Lincolnshire 

2 Archaeological services 

Total 11  

 

10 Debt Collection 

 

A review of debts is undertaken every month and monitoring is reported against targets.  Debts 
approved for write off by the Chief Finance Officer under the approved delegation, after all 
appropriate and proportionate recovery actions had been undertaken, were £41,647 for Council 
Tax and £10,839 for Housing Benefit Overpayments.  
 
Approval is sought to write-off one Business Rate debt over £5,000 shown in Table 10 and two 
Housing Benefit Over-Payments over £5,000 shown in Table 11, where we have exhausted all 
recovery methods available to the council.  
 
Table 10 – Business Rates write off 
 

Name 
 

 Balance 
£  

Year 
 

 Reason for write off  
 

Fogarty (Filled Products) 
Ltd 

145,842 2018-19 As previously reported, the company 
ceased trading on 29 October 2018 and 
went into administration. 

Total 145,842   

 
At the Year End 31 March 2019 a bad debt provision for this was set aside, therefore there is no 
ongoing financial impact as a consequence of writing off this debt.  
 
Table 11 – Housing Benefit Over-Payments write off 
 

Name 
 

 Balance 
£  

Address 
 

 Reason for write off  
 

HB Ref 100055554 16,108 Benington, 
Boston. 

Debtor deceased 08/01/19. No Estate. 

HB Ref 100937945 7,886 Tattershall 
Road, 
Boston 

Both HMRC and DWP have provided 
confirmation that the debts are 
irrecoverable. 

Total 23,994   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



An analysis of the Council’s Sundry Debts held at 30 June 2019 is shown in the following table: 
 
Table 12 – Sundry Debt analysis  
 

 

Recommendation:  
 
F3 To write-off the irrecoverable Business Rates Debt in the sum of £145,842 and the 

Housing Benefit Over-Payments in the sum of £23,994. 

            

 

11 Supplementary Estimates 

 
Supplementary estimates reflect instances where the Council has received additional income in 
the quarter, notified since the formal budget was set and its use is for a specific purpose.  
 
Table 13 – Supplementary Estimates  
 

Supplementary Estimates requiring Cabinet approval Amount 
£000 

Rough Sleeper Initiative (12 month funding) 145 

To be added to in year budget (145) 

Rapid Rehousing Pathway (12 month funding) 161 

To be added to in year budget (161) 

Controlling Migration Fund – Homelessness Project 187 

To be added to in year budget (187) 

 
 

Recommendation:  
 
F4 That the supplementary estimates in respect of Rough Sleeper Initiative, Rapid 

Rehousing Pathway and Controlling Migration Fund, as set out in table 13. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quarter 1 Not yet 
due 

0-30 days 31-91 
days 

92-365 
days 

Over 365 
days 

Total 

Amount £ 185,506 72,161 75,184 19,962 19,320 372,133 

Page 58



12 Insurance  

 
The number of insurance claims against the Council are relatively small and are in line with the 
past 4 years’ average. Not all claims result in the Council making a settlement payment. 
 
 A summary of the number of claims received, comparing them to 2018/19, is given below: 
 
Table 14 – Insurance claims received 
 

Cover Q1 

Public Liability 1 (2) 

Employer’s Liability 0 (0) 

Motor 1 (1) 

Property 0 (0) 

Total 2 (3) 

 
(Previous year comparison in brackets) 
 

13 Procurement Exemptions 

 
Under the Council’s Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules (specifically sections 3.1.2 (1) 
and (2) in this instance), exemptions over £25,000 need to be approved by the Cabinet. The 
award of grant funding under the Rough Sleepers Initiative (RSI) requires an exemption for the 
commissioning of the first property under the RSI due to a number of factors -  
  

 There is a lack of any infrastructure in Boston  

 no applicable properties are available through social housing partners 

 other forms of accommodation were not deemed appropriate  

 only landlord/letting agent was  able to deliver for the Council  

 a very quick offer/decision was needed to support the application for funding under the RSI 
funding offer 

 

Recommendations:  
 
F5 That the procurement exemption in respect of commissioning the first property to 

support activity under RSI funding be approved. 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



14 Localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support Scheme 

 
Table 15 – Localisation of Business Rates 
 

 
 

Base 
Estimate 

Included in 
2019/20  

£ 

 Projected 
Outturn 

 
2019/20 

£ 

Projected 
Deficit/ 

(Surplus) in 
2019/20 

£ 

Business Rates income for the year 19,759,572 20,096,444 (336,872) 

Less: Lincolnshire County Council share 
(10%) 

 
(1,975,957) 

 
(2,009,644) 

 
33,687 

Less: Central Government share (50%) (9,879,786) (10,048,222) 168,436 

Boston Borough Council’s Share (40%) 7,903,829 8,038,578 (134,749) 

Renewable Energy Schemes 110,969 110,969 - 

Net Levy to Pool (256,780) (274,207) 17,427 

Business Rates - Tariff adjustment (5,054,650) (5,058,294) 3,644 

Levy Account Surplus Grant income 40,800 40,800 - 

Business Rate Income credited to 
General Fund 2,744,168 2,857,846 (113,678) 

 
The projected outturn for the year to 31 March 2020 shows an overall Collection Fund surplus in 
year of £336,872 of which £113,678 is Boston BC’s share.  This surplus will carry over into 
2020/21 and will be included in the 2020/21 budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS).  
 
Business Rates Assurance  
 
This report covers results for the 2017 Rating List changes to date (i.e. from 1 April 2017 to 30 
June 2019) and includes backdated 2010 Rating List changes made during the same period.  
 
Of the 453 new cases finalised since 1 April 2017, a further 42 business rate assessments have 
been identified for the 2010 Rating List (making 238 extra ones from the start in 2014) and 110 
extra ones have been identified for the 2017 Rating List.  The 2017 List Rateable Value growth 
of £2.66m has been achieved so far from these cases.  The positive impact on rates payable 
across both Lists has been £1.10m (5.29%).  Boston’s net share is £0.57m and this is worth an 
extra £0.54m to this Council annually. Unfortunately, this does not translate into additional 
funding of this amount for the Council overall, as there are other changes taking place that 
would, without the Business Rates Assurance Function, reduce the Council’s share of total 
business rate income. 
 
The Valuation Office Agency (the body responsible for maintaining the Rating Lists) still has 34 
rating appeals outstanding for the 2010 Rating List (equating to 1.6% of Boston’s total rating 
assessments in that List), and there is an appropriate provision in the Council’s Accounts for the 
potential losses associated with any successful appeals. There continues to be no meaningful 
data available on outstanding appeals for the 2017 Rating List, although the outcome of these 
successful appeals is monitored as the appeals are determined. 
 
Council Tax Support Scheme 
 
2019/20 is the seventh year of the localised Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme. Following the 
statutory annual review during 2018/19, the decision was made to go forward into this year with 
a largely unchanged scheme, but allowing national up-ratings to be applied. This scheme 
continues to support the Government’s Welfare Reform agenda to bring further reductions to the 
national benefits bill. The continuation of the scheme sustains the required protection of those of 
pension age, protects vulnerable customers and encourages people into employment. A more 

Page 60



fundamental review of the Council’s CTS scheme will not take place until the local impacts of 
Universal Credit (UC) are known, which is unlikely to be for at least two years given the pace 
and extent of introduction of UC in Boston. The first UC cases here commenced in September 
2018.  
 
Whilst Collection of Council tax remains steady and on track against forecasts, there is still 
some uncertainty of the overall ongoing impact of CTS. In recognition, we continue to remain 
prudent in setting the bad debt provision in this area.  
 
The number recipients of CTS in 2019/20 continues to show a roughly even split between 
working age claimants and pensioners.  
 

15 Other Financial Matters 

 
Audit and Governance Committee 

 
A number of reports were presented to Audit and Governance Committee on the 22 May 2019: 
 

 Annual External Audit Fee. 

 External Audit Progress Report including Technical Update. 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2018-19 

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2018-19 

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2018-19 

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-19 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019-20 

 Work Programme   
 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

REPORT TO: 

 

CABINET 

DATE: 

 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

11 SEPTEMBER 2019  

 

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME – REFRESH 

 

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM 

EXEMPT REPORT: NO 

 

 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Council’s current Transformation Programme (TP) runs from 2016/17 to 2019/20, and 
covers the period of the Government’s four-year settlement.  
 
This report sets out proposals for a refresh of the TP to meet the challenges of the 
projected budget position for the next four years, and the need to make net budget savings 
of almost £1m.   
 
The update to the TP will show how the Council intends to meet future financial challenges, 
demonstrating that it has plans for the coming years to meet the projected budget gaps.  

 
 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
That Cabinet reviews the consultation responses, and recommends the proposed 
Transformation Programme to Full Council for formal approval. 

 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

REPORT:  

 
1    INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The Council has had a Transformation Programme (TP) for a number of years, which has 

helped it identify and deliver projects designed to improve performance and make 
financial savings to meet the challenge of reducing resources across the local 
government sector.  

 
1.2 The nature and scale of further transformation requires an early and clear direction to 

provide the best chance of success. If agreed, a programme covering four years would 
limit the need for more difficult decisions in the future.  

 

2 DETAILS  
 
2.1 The current TP runs until the end of the current financial year, in line with the 

Government’s four-year settlement deal. Now is, therefore, an appropriate time to 
consider a refresh of the programme. Appendix 1 sets out the proposed programme. This 
will allow the Council to demonstrate that it has robust plans to save money and live 
within its means in the coming years.  

 
2.2 The current TP has helped the Council reduce its annual budget by over £2.5m, with 

initiatives including the relocation of the DWP and other partners, Parish Council/BTAC 
support, and sharing services. 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Council has operated a Transformation Programme (TP) for some years, enabling it to 
demonstrate the ways in which it intends to meet the anticipated financial challenges facing it. 
This has proved successful, and with the current TP ending in 2019/20, and future significant 
savings targets expected, it is appropriate for a refreshed TP to be adopted. 
 
In addition, the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) approved alongside the budget in 
February 2019 projects a cumulative budget gap of almost £1m to 2023/24 if no action is 
taken. This report sets out a series of actions that it is anticipated would deliver annual 
balanced budgets, in accordance with legal requirements.  
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
The Council could choose not to refresh its Transformation Programme. However, this would 
mean that annual decisions would be required to ensure that the Council was able to meet its 
statutory requirement to set a balanced budget each year, without a framework within which 
those decisions would be made.  
 

Page 64



 

2.3 The draft programme is arranged within four main themes, and it is important to point out 
that, whilst the way that services are organised is likely to change, the TP does not 
propose the absolute removal of any of the range of services currently being delivered.  

 

 

2.4 As a reminder, the projected 2020/21 budget gap is over £0.5m, rising to almost £0.9m 
by 2023/24, as set out in the table below.  
 
Table 1 – projected future budget gaps (February 2019 MTFS) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.5 There are a number of uncertainties at present in respect of funding levels from 2020/21, 

including the proposed single year 2019 and multi-year 2020 Spending Reviews, 
Government initiatives to revise the funding distribution formula, and the further 
localisation of business rates. Their resolution will inevitably amend future years’ budget 
gaps, but what is certain is that there will be savings’ requirements. The refresh of the TP 
is therefore appropriate and necessary. 
 

2.6 The four themes within the proposed TP refresh are – 
 

 Commercialisation  

 Service Modernisation  

 Income Generation  

 Policy Changes  
 
2.7 These build on the success of the current TP, and aim to retain the breadth of current 

services whilst making the budgetary decisions necessary to balance annual spending 
plans. 
 

2.8 At this stage the indicative savings figure across the next four years is £1m, although it is 
accepted that this will be refined and will change as more detailed work is undertaken on 
specific projects and future funding levels become clearer, and the figures then 
incorporated into future budgets. As set out in paragraph 2.4, the Council has a forecast 
requirement to reduce its net budget by almost £1m per annum by 2023/24.  

 
2.9 The timetable for consultation and approval is set out below.  

 

 

17 July 2019  Cabinet recommends draft TP for consultation, and public 
consultation begins 

23 August 2019  Public consultation ends 

5 September 2019  Scrutiny (C & C) Committee reviews the draft proposals 

11 September 2019  Cabinet receives feedback from the consultation 

Year 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Forecast budget gap - annual 538 10 86 253 

Forecast budget gap – cumulative 538 548 634 887 

Page 65



 

exercises, and recommends the TP to Council 

30 September 2019  Full Council approves and adopts the TP, including any 
specific first year proposals 

 

 

2.10 Provisional settlement figures for 2020/21 are not expected until later this year, and 
therefore the specific timing and number of projects to be included next year will not be 
finalised until the draft budget proposals for next year are presented early in 2020.  

 
 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The report itself creates no additional resource requirements at this time. However, some 
projects within it will need funds to enable progress and delivery (one-off funds will come from 
the Transformation Reserve), and future reports setting out the funds needed will be 
presented as projects are worked up.  
 

 
 

 
LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires councils to set a balanced budget each 
year. 
 
Equality impacts will be considered as part of progressing each project, as necessary. 
 

 
 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There will be implications for service delivery arising from some projects, and these will be 
included in reports in due course as projects are developed. 
  
Subject to the Transformation Programme being agreed by Full Council, it is reasonable to 
anticipate future employment changes which will require careful management to mitigate both 
costs and implications for staff.  
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation with the Council’s Scrutiny Members took place at the meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Corporate and Community Committee on 5 September and its comments will 
be presented to this meeting; public consultation on the broad aspects of the Transformation 
Programme took place from 17 July to 23 August, and the responses are attached at 
Appendix 2.  
 
In addition, specific consultation processes will be undertaken for projects where it is deemed 
that this is appropriate. 
 

Page 66



 

 
APPENDICES  
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: -  
 
APPENDIX 1  
 
 
APPENDIX 2 

 
Proposed Transformation Programme - 
2020/21 to 2023/24 
 
Public consultation responses 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the production of this report.  
 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT  
Reports on the refresh of the Transformation Programme were considered by the Cabinet on 
17 July and the Overview and Scrutiny Corporate and Community Committee on 5 
September. 
 
  

Page 67



 

 
 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:   
 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REFRESH 
REPORT DATE: 11 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
      
 
 

     

      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  Date:  
Total capital cost 
 

£0 
 
 

   

Revenue cost 
 

£0  Cabinet  11 
September 
2019 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. Following approval, as 
specific projects are worked up, reports will include financial implications.  
 
Risk 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 

from FP date 
If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 
If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 

be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 68



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

APPENDIX 2 

 

Transformation Plan Consultation Results – August 2019 

 

Introduction 

 

The current Transformation Programme runs from 2016/17 to 2019/20 and covers the period 

of the Government’s four-year settlement.  It has helped the Council reduce its annual 

budget by over £2.5m with initiatives including relocation of the Department for Work and 

Pensions and other partners, Parish Council/Boston Town Area Committee support and 

sharing services. 

 

There are new proposals for a refresh of the Transformation Programme to ensure the 

Council meets the challenge of the projected budgeted position of the next four years, this 

and the need to make net budget savings of almost £1m were set out in the Cabinet Report 

in July 2020, and public consultation ran from 5 July 2019 to 23 August 2019.  

 

Methodology 

 

The Transformation Programme is arranged within four main themes, and the consultation 

was set out to reflect these themes: -  

 

 Commercialisation 

 Service Modernisation 

 Income Generation 

 Policy Changes 

 

The survey was placed online and on the council’s social media sites, a paper copy was also 

available from the Municipal Buildings.  Sixteen completed surveys were received.  

 

Full Consultation Results 

 

Q.  Having read the Transformation Programme and any associated papers, do you 

agree that these are the areas the council should be looking to transform in order to 

save money? (for example, if you feel that any areas should not be on the list, please 

explain why) 

 

Eleven comments were received: -  

 

1 I agree 

2 Agree 

3 Yes 

4 Cut down on expenses  and councillor numbers 

5 If the details were put into language the ordinary man in the street understand I 
might be able to give a proper reply 

6 Why are there 2 amounts the same for housing and regulatory services and 
regulatory service review 

7 Usually when a council ‘looks’ at saving money it costs more to ‘look’ and longer 
than is actually saved 

8 None listed 

9 Not all  

Page 71



2 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

10 Healthy living should be always encouraged.  Proposal lis listing to reduce the 
related fund is not wise 

11 Brown bins shouldn't be charged for emptying as compost is required for containers 
and flower beds within the borough. 

 

Q. Are there any other areas that you think should be added? 

 

Eleven comments were received: -  

 

1 Clean up the disgusting town 

2 Members and associated costs 

3 Member services/expenses 

4 Review councillors’ expenses and unnecessary ‘freebies’ 

5 Stop publishing the County News 

6 review the facilities provided at the pool - in light of costs profile 

7 Reduce payments to Lincoln C.C. reserves 

8 Check out the payments for rents from/ to social landlords when there is no cap. 

9 The Park 

10 There should be a £10 a month voluntary contribution agreement for every rental 
property managed by the big rental companies in the town. The boom profits made 
from transient workers has not been shared with the Authority. The Authority pick up 
the tab for the rubbish and decay, but the Landlords and Labour Bosses take all the 
money for themselves 

11 Stop excessive pay rises.  Stop creating jobs that aren’t advertised.  

 

Theme 1 – Commercialisation 

 

Q. Are there any services that you think the council should consider looking at 

selling? What do you see as the pros and cons of the council becoming more 

commercialised? 

 

Twelve comments were received: - 

 

1 How does selling off anything assist in the long term 

2 Depends who will make the most money out of it. Those successful i the 'sales' will 
be trying to get their money bakc plus a bit more so there will be little difference 
seen 

3 More fines for fly tipping. Compulsory purchase of long term empty properties for 
renovation & either sell or rent out. 

4 It would appear from the outside that Government departments spend way over the 
odds for contracts, services and supplies.  Change your suppliers like businesses 
have to remain competitive. 

5 The Council should sell the grass cutting service more effectively. Being under cut 
by private companies from outside the area is obscene 

6 Chatge landlords of empty shops monthly to tidy areas of doorways and clean 
windows. Charge private car parks for slip  trips and falls surveys 3 monthly 

7 Extra administrative officers and possible lack of quality control – cons 

8 The council is there to serve. The budgeting issues are now superseding the service 
and welfare of locals. Any privatisation in part or full will mean reduced service. This 
is not done. If we keep going at this rate, we will have no control over our own local 
bodies and the sense of belonging will go too. I am against any such 
commercialisation.  Scrap the councillors. That is a good idea. 

9 1. Getting better value for money than direct employees - how can effective 

Page 72



3 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

assurance be evidenced? Direct employees have a direct reason to be efficient, 
effective  loyal, responsive, responsible in comparisons to contracted workers where 
the owner is solely seeking a profit from the contract. The workers have no 
incentives and are often paid the absolute minimum (maybe even zero hour 
contracts to achieve the ,lowest payroll cost to the contracted owner) so the 
standard of work can be inferior. (See 3 below)   2. Getting the quality of work from 
subcontracted services - especially when those tendering will be placing the lowest 
bids that they can to get the contracts, leaving the contract subject to be poorly 
delivered. This has happened nationally with high profile failures like G4 Olympic 
and prison service contracts, there are many more!   3. difficulty to assure the public 
and members -  in proper and effective monitoring of the performance / work by sub-
contractors unless the monitor is skilled “in the art” of the contracted service. Extra 
costs and personnel to achieve satisfactory monitoring and  performance to targets. 

10 Sell. The Council Offices and build a more modern one out of town 

11 Contractor's are going to cost more than to employ someone directly. If you sell the 
services then residents should have a council tax cut because we would be getting 
less for our money. 

12 The Council should bring in a compulsory clean-up bond with all Landlords having a 
portfolio of properties comprising more than 1 property. The tenant must lodge that 
bond with the Council as integral to their rental agreement with the Landlord. When 
the property is vacated, a Council inspector should review the property and 
surrounding neighbourhood to ensure the immediate area is being left rubbish and 
flytipping free. This inspection service fee should be subtracted from the bond, and if 
necessary the bond forfeited if the area is not left clean.  This may help stop the 
blight of flytipping as tenants swap over, and would allow the Council to raise funds 
from inspections and from the boom in transient workers. This should be agreed with 
the cooperation of the Landlords. They should help their local Authority and the 
wider public, not just taking the profits without putting something back. 

 

Theme 2 – Service Modernisation 

 

Q. What do you see as the pros and cons to the council undertaking service reviews? 

 

Thirteen comments were received: -  

 

1 No pros and many many cons we the electorate are being swamped by tax and 
additional costs 

2 If they act on the reviews which show poor service and improve them - ok. 
Otherwise a waste of time 

3 It will reduce the number of staff as they are the biggest cost. However, services 
should be as lean & efficient as possible, using all the technology available to them 
to increase efficiencies. Having being a customer some services are much more 
switched on to modern working (and give better customer service) than others that 
still seem to work in the dark ages because that's the way they've always done It! 

4 The review will take too long and cost a fortune.  It's not rocket science for a 
manager to know if something is working properly, effectively, efficiently and 
economically.  What do you pay your managers for? 

5 The actual effort and resources taken to "review" the services could be better spent 
delivering service. 

6 Its a good thing, all services need to check they are value for money 

7 None money outlay for little return 

8 Pro - services remain but potential cost benefits and greater efficiency 

9 Again, as far as I know the services are stretched to the max. Any more pressure 
and it will fall apart. A spring can only be pushed to some extent. Then it will either 

Page 73



4 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

snap or bounce off. 

10 A. Will the performance be at least equal the existing service?  If not, in what way 
will it change  B. Who will be charged with monitoring and comparing to the 
potential? C.  how will the performance be effectively and realistically monitored?  D. 
Will the service be benchmarked 1. Against the (previous) existing service 2. Against 
other services. Potential and Performance in other Councils /Districts. -  in 
Lincolnshire and from outside Lincolnshire?  E. Where is the expectation of the 
potential and performance being evaluated and both who and how will it be set (by) 
in the proposed minimum cost contract on offer?  . 

11 Reviews are identical each year 

12 Reviews are a good idea 

13 Services will shrink. 

 

Theme 3 – Income Generation 

 

Q. What do you see as the pros and cons of the council looking at more options for 

generating income? 

 

Fourteen comments were received: -  

 

1 Lobby the government we the public are saturated with costs and cannot afford ant 
more 

2 In other words you will be putting prices up. Why not just come out and say it? 

3 Are the staff trained and conversant in running  commercialised services? 
Traditionally  council staff dont have business background as evidenced by the lack 
of customer service skills in some departments (NOT the front desk staff)  Pros are 
that  if they are an extension of existing successful services there will be benefits 
from the economies of scale. 

4 This word "looking" keeps cropping up.  Your managers should know this 
information.  Review your staff instead. 

5 Introduction of additional risk when taking on extra burdens. 

6 If they invested in places like the swimming pool rather than just the gym this would 
bring more people in as the changing rooms and pool area are well over due a 
refurbishment! Changes to the time table are going to lose the council money as 
people with children are going to be turned away at certain times which is one way 
of stopping people ever coming back. Well done council!!! 

7 Pros - may make more money.  Cons - people may go elsewhere for services or 
stop using them. 

8 Waste prices increase will lead to more flytipping, more cost to council to clean up 

9 Con - extra fees for green waste will encourage fly tipping, not everyone has access 
to a trailer to go to the Council recycling centre, nor the extra cash to pay for the 
service, especially as brown bins attracted an initial fee.  Con - increase in number 
of unscrupulous white van tippers who con the elderly in paying for waste removal  
Pro - crematorium cost increase only if improved parking, no penalty for slightly 
longer service than allocated, and live web links to be introduced. The latter 
important as many friends and relatives are often worldwide. 

10 Garden waste, commercial waste, rates, parking charges, etc can be increased. 
Crematorium should be left alone. It’s not an event to exploit money from. 

11 Garden waste :  Seeking excessive higher charges (above the nett cost of the 
service) will contribute to increasing - fly tipping! As garden waste it is biodegradable 
people will not see any issues.   When one considers that all collections are now 
fortnightly - many people do not fill a bin every week .... many other blue and green 
buns are not filled - even every fortnight - for single home occupancy and flats.... 

Page 74



5 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

and the “dustbin” service is again a council tax essential and paid for by all already.  
The brown bin was a cashcow introduction / extension.  The public are aware that 
there is a mass confidence trick going on with so-called segregated bin collections 
and much of the rubbish is just dumped together and / or incinerated.  The export of 
UK rubbish (recycled in particular) to other counties has stopped - they have ceased 
taking so-called recycled rubbish e.g. India / China (who were simply burying it in the 
ground anyway NOT burning or recycling).   There is an ignored, sustainable moral 
commercial issue to just pass on and dump UK rubbish to another country that is 
wrong. Big business exploited it and made vast profits from it until the other counties 
refused.  There is a massive,  so-called and very profitable “recyclable” waste 
business that has been exploited for years.   So-called sustainable, recycled 
material is being stockpiled at huge levels as companies fail in attempts to dispose 
or it.   Better to burn it all in high temperature, low emission units and use the energy 
sustainably to local needs!     It’s hypocrisy to declare any other.... when the Drax 
Power station is fed on carbon fuels - millions of tonnes of wood chippings being 
imported from USA; shipped across the Atlantic in tar (bunker fuel) powered worst 
polluting CO2 fuel with NO carbon tax charges whatsoever- to UK port,  then more 
carbon use,  Diesel bulk goods trains delivering across west to east to the Drax 
plant.    Crematorium  These fees (in comparisons to church burials) are already 
high and increasing them to seek higher profits is morally wrong. The upkeep of the 
used energy costs (benchmarked) and essential maintenance of the units and 
buildings is one thing but a council cremation service is an essential need in every 
district and must not be exploited..   Commercial waste  These charges should be in 
line,  only, with benchmarking waste charges in other districts / regions / rural 
counties.  They are a necessary business cost and business (as with rates) should 
be welcomed, treated fairly, and not exploited. 

12 Our Town should be advertised more widely 

13 Fly tipping of garden waste has increased since charges began on brown bin. It 
would make sense to not charge for the emptying as the cost to clean up probably 
would be more than the charge. 

14 More flytipping of waste 

 

Q. Please detail the impact that raising the fees and charges on these services will 

have on you 

 

Eleven comments were received: -  

 

1 Will have to choose eat or heat Council tax and other council fees now take up over 
66% of my pension 

2 Don’t know 

3 Obviously it will impact my pocket 

4 Increasing garden waste collection fees will increase fly tipping. Increasing 
crematorium costs is debilitating at what is a stressful and difficult time.  You don't 
need anymore worries including financial. If the council doesn't remain competitive in 
the collection of commercial waste you'll lose customers.  That equals loss of 
income generation not increase 

5 I would have to think about the affordability of continuing with these services i.e. 
garden waste 

6 Increase in flytipping reports ultimately landing at the feet of the council 

7 Getting less and less for our money. 

8 I will not be able to afford my council tax 

9 I don't use the commercial or brown bin service. I have a friend who uses the brown 
bin but is not prepared to pay more. They will stop it and make alternative 
arrangements  if the charges go up. 

Page 75



6 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

10 It will have impact but it can be reasoned. Rates, parking, Garden waste etc are not 
basic services and can be used to generate income. Any basic need (like general 
tax) should not be put up as it only creates half hardship for the less able. 

11 Garden waste  price increase - increased carbon footprint due to many visits to 
recycling centre  Cremation- if technological upgrades then we would use Boston 
and not have to travel to nearer Spalding 

 

Q. Are there any other services that you feel the council should look at when 

considering raising fees and charges? 

 

Ten comments were received: -  

 

1 No we cannot pay any more 

2 Yes - charge staff, including councillors and officers for parking at municipal 
Buildings. Almost every one else in town - including nurses, doctors and staff at 
Pilgrim - have to pay to work. Why not those working in West Street? 

3 Fly tipping fines. 

4 It should be looking in house at how finance and spending is managed.  For 
example, if statements weren't sent out on the day your commercial waste in live 
was due for payment you'd save a fortune on paper, stamps, envelopes  and time.  
Use common sense.  I'm all for saving the environment but recycled paper costs a 
lot more than non-recycled.  Should we be savings pennies or the environment?  
Yes the environment in austere times but we're not in those times at the moment. 

5 Enviroment charge on lorries and vans coming into town center 

6 If the market place carparking bays were returned to how they were over 10 year 
ago, thus almost tripling the current facility and making it safer for pedestrians and 
drivers as they would both know where to walk and drive, fees could be reduced for 
short stay and therefore increase footfall in the town and the more numerous parking 
fees would increase overall income.  Many people only need to “pop into “ town and 
the market place once offered this facility.   However, this lack of historical foresight 
may make this impossible now due to a lack of major market place players. 

7 Alcohol license should be made periodic. Every year need renewal and at a cost. 
This will generate income and keep better control of the raft of alcohol shops around 
town. 

8 No. 

9 Bringing back emptying the brown bin for free. Recycle more plastics 

10 There should be a property/neighbourhood inspection service for transient 
workers/tenants. This should be agreed with the Landlords in Boston. There should 
be mandatory provision (with Landlord cooperation) in every short term tenancy 
agreement involving transient workers and their families. There should be fees 
passed on to the tenants as they revolve through the town. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Theme 4 – Policy Changes 

 

Page 76



7 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

Q. What do you see as the pros and cons of the council making policy changes of this 

type? 

 

Twelve comments were received: -  

 

1 You will find out at next election 

2 If you get rid of these will our council tax go down? No, I didn't think so. Your costs 
go down, everyone else's goes upSee above 

3 If these are not services that the  council MUST provide then they should be halted 
during these times of austerity. The council needs to be innovative.  Perhaps the 
community should come together through voluntary services. The settled migrant 
population should be expected to contribute as much as the existing population to 
tackle those who have little respect for our town. . Landlords of multiple occupancy 
houses should be held responsible for the rubbish generated, anti social behaviour, 
etc. They pocket high rents taking money out of the local economy and do not give 
back but indeed create bigger burdens on the public purse because of their lack of  
control. 

4 If you transfer litter bin responsibility to parish councils it just means an increase in 
our council tax by parish precept. 

5 People will consider their Council Tax monies are being spent on folly projects not 
the essentials. The expectation of being a Council that wastes money may be 
realised. 

6 its a shame that the council may not be able to support these type of things, but if 
money is tight something has to be cut 

7 Would rather cut numbers of councellors to just 20, as like [removed identifiable 
information] paying out good money for no return 

8 Con - if PCs are responsible for collections then the rate payer will still have to pay 
an increase, unless the BC pays the PCs which will defeat the purpose   Con - out of 
term activities are essential to keep children off the streets but perhaps token 
charges could be made? 

9 Not sure if its good or bad. Need to know exact list.  Holiday activity should continue.  
Litter bins is a must, if parish councils fail, it poses more hazardous situations. It is 
not wise 

10 We pay council tax to the borough and they have paid employees.  Parishes do not. 
They rely on volunteers.  Parish councils struggle to get volunteers now. There are 
enough pressures on parishes. We already have too highly paid Council employees   
Make all pension contributory and reduce the paid pension contributions from our 
taxes. Pension take a huge part of council taxes. 

11 Children of poor families will suffer without activities 

12 Flytipping will soar 

 

Q.  Please detail the impact that policy changes have on you 

 

Eight comments were received: - 

 

1 Poorer and poorer every year on 

2 Probably not a great deal. Parish councils will pass the cost onto council tax. 

3 Increased council tax. 

4 Funding for chrildren activites is important for intergration. Council wasted lump sum 
given for this 

5 We would still have to pay for litter collections whoever is responsible. 

6 Flytipping Watch will be very busy and so will the Council 

7 Reduced income to live on.  We are already taxed high enough for local services. 

Page 77



8 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

8 Need to know these changes are to feel the imact 

 

Social Media Comments 

 

There were also a number of comments on the proposals received via social media, as 

detailed below: -  

 

Facebook comments 

 

 Careful tho very pointed questions! 

 

 Sorry but I don’t agree with paying anymore for garden bins to be emptied.  Who 

agrees we have to pay for bins in the first place then they went up in price 

 

 Lol… you could not make it up… oh open ye floodgates 

 

 Why even bother asking when we all know you will do whichever makes the most 

money, like council tax for example, how about instead of writing off peoples ct debs 

over the last 15 years you actually get the money back owed I bet that could amount 

to a huge amount of money.  

 

 More of should complain to the government 

 

 Is it true Brown bin collection charges are going up next term? 

 

 Be cheaper soon to see your own brown bin stuff. 

 

 Turn off street lights in Pets carpark during day time really useless energy/waste 

 

 Stop fiddling expenses and drawing more money for meetings they don’t attend and 

stop making up committees with ever more generous allowances 

 

 Get rid of all the councillors.  They make the most ridiculous decision that they make 

cost the tax payer a fortune in hundreds of millions. 

 

 Get rid of a couple of councillors, job done 

 

 Up the cost of the bins again  

 

 Another point charge all councillors and employees parking fees like ulht 

 

 What about all the hundreds of houses that have been built in the town? 100% 

increase in your funding from those and 0% maintenance other than the bins being 

emptied.  

 

 I would like to know just how much is spent on pensions every year.  Also why some 

positions get paid more than the prime minister a year. 

 

 I think you should get rid of the Traffic wardens there is a waste of money, as there’s 

no need to come to Boston Town.  

Page 78



9 
 

 
*All comments (either from survey or social media) appear as received.  

 

 

Twitter comments 

 

 Cut top executive pay in half  cut out ‘fake’ jobs like diversity and equality mangers 

etc [removed identifiable information] 

 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

REPORT TO:  CABINET 

DATE: 11 SEPTEMBER 2019 

SUBJECT: IT STRATEGY 2019-2023 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR SPENCER – LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
The proposed IT Strategy pulls together the existing strategies and plans for IT into a 
single document, providing a high-level vision for the next four years. 
 
It is supported by a project list covering the immediate 6 month period ahead – 
October 2019 to March 2020. 
 
Every 6 months CMT/Transformation Board will update the Strategy to reflect projects 
to be included in the work plan for the following 6 months. This will ensure that 
resources are focused to the rapid and successful delivery of priority projects. 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
To agree the IT Strategy and delegate authority to the Leader and the Chief Finance 
Officer to review and update every 6 months with reporting to Cabinet as part of the 
usual quarterly reporting framework. 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To provide a clear set of ambitions for the Council’s IT over the next four year period. 
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Alternative project arrangements 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 5



REPORT 
 

 
The key elements of the Strategy are: 
 

1. Executive Summary 

 Building on our investment  

 Aligning to business objectives  
2. Corporate Priorities 
3. Current Position  

 Personal Computing Estate 

 Printing 

 Telephony 

 Remote Working 

 Application Portfolio 

 Skills 
4. Digital Delivery 
5. Technology as an enabler 

 Infrastructure and cloud  

 Applications  
6. The Technology Foundations  

 Investment  

 Principles  
7. Governance and best practice  

 Progress Monitoring 

 Collaboration  

 Risk management  

 Financial management 

 Data management 
8. Funding 
9. IT Projects: Phase 1  

 1. Alfresco Enhancement 

 2. Bartec Upgrade 

 3. Agile Applications Optimisation 

 4. Email Retention & Case Management 

 5. Text Messaging 

 6. Printing Device Review 
 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed IT Strategy will provide us with a clear ambition for the next four years 
and swift, deliverable projects at six month intervals. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no new financial implications relating to this report. 
 

 

Page 82



 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Local Government Act 1999 
 
Equality implications will be assessed on a project by project basis. 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Risk implications will be assessed on a project by project basis. 
 
Project progress will be reported as part of the usual quarterly reporting framework. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 

Consultation has been undertaken with CMT. 

 

 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report:- 
 

APPENDIX A IT Strategy 2019-2023 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page | 1 
 

 

 

 

Boston Borough Council 

IT Strategy 2019-2023 

[Phase 1: October 2019 to March 2020] 

 

 

  

Page 85



 

Page | 2 
 

Introduction  

The lives of our residents, staff and elected members have been transformed by technology.  

The internet has revolutionised the way that people communicate with each other and transact 

business. The mass adoption of advanced technology is driving development of new ways of 

interacting with each other, business and government. Consumers now expect to be able to transact 

their business digitally with organisations 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. It is essential that the 

Council’s approach to IT and digital services is structured, strategic and corporate.  

By doing this the value obtained from Information and Technology across the organisation will 

increase. At present the Council hosts its own data centre, but in future this will almost certainly not 

be cost effective.  

The future strategy will be to investigate opportunities to move our infrastructure to cloud or hosted 

services with the view to reducing costs, while maintaining reliability and security. The provision of 

disaster recovery will also be explored in this way.  

The Council is currently supported by around 40 significant application systems. The overall strategy 

for application systems will be to provide fewer, more flexible best of breed application systems that 

allow the relevant information to be available where and when required. The increasing use of cloud 

based applications will allow the Council to be agile in its adoption of new solutions where 

appropriate. 

The Council’s website along with other social media, such as Facebook and Twitter, have become and 

will continue to be a crucial information and service delivery channel for residents, businesses and 

community groups. The usability of the website, updated earlier in 2019, is a crucial factor in 

encouraging take-up of new online services and in driving channel shift. 

Digital transformation will not only enhance the customer experience but will also be an enabler to 

the Council becoming more efficient. This IT Strategy will support business transformation, in 

particular the development of digital media and will link closely with our Transformation Agenda. 

 

Councillor Aaron Spencer 
Leader 

aaron.spencer@boston.gov.uk 

Page 86



 

Page | 3 
 

Document Revisions & History 
 

Version Author/Owner Comment Action Date 

0.1 Matthew Clarke Initial draft for discussion with 
Business Transformation and IT 

04/07/2019 

0.2 Matthew Clarke Minor consistency updates 04/07/2019 

1.0 Suzanne Rolfe Submitted for approval by SMT 18/07/2019 

1.0 Suzanne Rolfe Submitted for approval by CMT 07/08/2019 

2.0 Suzanne Rolfe Submitted for approval by 
Transformation Board / Cabinet 

28/08/2019 

 

Acronyms 
 

Acronym Corresponding 
Expansion 

Description 

BC Borough Council Term used to describe a second-tier council delivering 
local services 

CIO Chief Information 
Officer 

The corporate executive in charge of information 
technology strategy and implementation 

CMT Corporate 
Management Team 

Collective description for all senior officers and 
Directors, including Chief Executive 

DPA Data Protection Act Act of the United Kingdom (UK) Parliament defining the 
ways in which information about living people may be 
legally used and handled 

DPO Data Protection 
Officer 

Corporate officer tasked with ensuring that data 
management and handling are compliant with the 
General Data Protection Regulations 

EDM Electronic Document 
Management 

The management of different kinds of documents in an 
enterprise using computer programs and storage 

GDPR General Data 
Protection Act 

Legal framework for the collection and processing of 
personal information from individuals who live in the 
European Union (EU) 

GDS Government Digital 
Service 

Government Digital Service (GDS) is leading the digital 
transformation of government. 

IT Information 
Technology 

Generic term used to describe the use of technology in 
the organisation 

ITIL Information 
Technology 
Infrastructure Library 

A set of detailed practices for IT service management 
that focuses on aligning IT services with the needs of 
business. 

PSN Public Services 
Network 

The government's high-performance network, which 
helps public sector organisations work together, reduce 
duplication and share resources. 

SMT Service Management 
Team 

Collective description for all Managers responsible for 
delivering the Council’s services 

SIRO Senior Information 
Risk Owner 

An Executive Director of an organisation with overall 
responsibility for an organisation's information risk 
policy. 

Page 87



 

Page | 4 
 

Foreword 

Our previous IT Strategy documents have been based on the assumption of a stable business 

environment with a low rate of technical innovation and little change in customer behaviour. This has 

resulted in contents becoming increasingly removed from the business needs of the council as time 

progresses through the period of the strategy. 

As such, this strategy document has been written to cover the high level ambitions of a 4 year period, 

but to include only the projects relevant to the immediate 6 month period ahead, starting with the 

period October 2019 to March 2020. 

Every 6 months CMT/Transformation Board will update the Strategy to reflect projects to be included 

in the work plan for the following 6 months. This will ensure that resources are focused to the rapid 

and successful delivery of priority projects, and to ensure that all new initiatives conform to the 

corporate project governance methodology with effective scrutiny before and after project delivery. 

1. Executive Summary 

Boston is a small borough council serving a population of 65,000 residents. Boston BC has a small 

dedicated and professional work force, service delivery standards are high and resources have to be 

used efficiently.  

Over the next five years Boston will witness significant changes. There will be increasing financial 

pressures with the ongoing reduction of general Government Grant, including the expectation of a 

complete phasing out of the Revenue Support Grant by 2020. Further pressures will come from a 

changing population and changes in legislation. The shape and size of the council is likely to change, 

but the need to provide high quality services to our residents will remain. With these new challenges 

will come new opportunities to use IT to enable the Council to achieve efficiencies while maintaining 

and improving service delivery standards. IT will be a key contributor to achieving the corporate vision 

of being an entrepreneurial Council and keeping pace with residents’ changing needs and 

expectations.  

IT is no longer just a support service; it has become a critical service. If it is unavailable, the 

organisation cannot operate. It has the ability to transform the way services are organised and 

delivered. It has a fundamental role to play in improving efficiency, reducing cost across the 

organisation, exploiting income generating opportunities and improving the customer experience.  

Demand for public services and expectations of levels of service are ever increasing. Residents and 

businesses demand the same levels of access and personalisation that they see online from large 

private sector organisations such as Amazon and Asda. They expect to be able to access their services 

from multiple locations and devices and in ways and at times that suit them. This Strategy places a 

strong emphasis on providing choice in the way people access our services, within available resources. 

This will ensure maximum choice for our residents, which in turn will drive efficiencies in service 

delivery.  

  

Page 88



 

Page | 5 
 

The risk of cyber-crime is increasing. Recent Government statistics have showed seven in ten 

organisations identifying a breach or attack. Organisations holding personal data being most likely to 

be attacked, with the most common attacks being fraudulent emails, viruses and malware. 

Government is urging organisations to protect themselves against cyber-crime. 

Building on our investment  

The Council’s technology has undergone significant transformation in recent years. A wide-reaching 

IT improvement and office rationalisation programme has been delivered, investing in robust, reliable 

infrastructure and systems to ensure a stable IT platform supporting the aspirations of the 

organisation whilst helping to meet the financial challenges presented by ongoing reductions in 

central government funding. 

Making the website the channel of choice for most residents offers an opportunity to achieve 

significant savings for the council, while at the same time offering a better service. 

To be successful in encouraging residents to use web access to services and information we need to 

ensure their experience is a positive one, otherwise they will be unlikely to return.  

Considerable investment has been made in our back office business systems and the foundations for 

electronic transaction processing have been put in place. A review will be undertaken to determine if 

all modules procured have been implemented and are being used to their fullest extent, maximising 

the return, in terms of efficient use of a significant asset. This review will also determine if current 

software remains fit for purpose. Any recommendations will feed into future iterations of this 

strategy. 

Digital thinking will need to embed into the organisation alongside a ‘can do’ attitude, developing a 

culture that puts residents’ needs and preferences first. Investing in our staff will remain a high 

priority. We will continue to improve the IT skills of our workforce, equipping them with the skills they 

need to deliver a digital based service. We will continually review the replacement and upgrading of 

IT hardware and software to ensure that our workforce has the right solutions for their work and 

ensure they are properly trained to use it.  

Cloud technologies are now sufficiently mature to be considered a viable alternative to traditional on-

premise solutions. This strategy continues our step towards cloud solutions where appropriate rather 

than a revolutionary ‘big bang’ approach. Boston has limited resources and cloud adoption must be 

approached in a measured way. We have begun this journey with a project for telephony that has 

provided the council with an ongoing future proofed solution.  

With the risks of suffering a cyber-attack increasing, Boston needs to ensure it protects itself should 

an attack prove to be successful. In addition to the physical security arrangements in place Boston will 

also look to insure itself against a potential cyber-attack. 

Information Services will continue to ensure that Boston maintains its Public Services Network (PSN) 

compliance and follow Government Digital Service (GDS) best practice. 

Records management is at the heart of the Modernising Government agenda. Electronic records 

management underpins electronic government services. If as a public authority we cannot undertake 

the effective management of our records and information - particularly keeping them organised and 

accessible for as long as they are needed (but no longer), it will be hard to sustain electronic services.  

Page 89



 

Page | 6 
 

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), which replaced the Data Protection Act (DPA), came 

into force on 25th May 2018, and has a direct impact on how long data is held and the rights of access 

by data subjects (residents). The Data Protection Officer who is responsible for data protection and 

information security will conduct a data audit and update the data retention policy in early 2020. 

Aligning to business objectives  

Technology acts as an enabler for our Service Managers and their teams to deliver the Council’s 

ambitious Corporate Plan, business objectives and goals.  

2. Corporate Priorities 

The Council is preparing a new Corporate Plan for the Borough from 2019 and is currently undertaking 

consultation as part of that development. The plan will focus on creating a Borough where people 

wish to live, work and invest. The Phase 2 review of this Strategy will take account of the new Plan 

after its adoption. 

3. Current Position  

In order to provide a clear starting point for our new Strategy, a comprehensive consultation has been 

conducted with each service area of the organisation. This will ensure that any service delivery issues, 

constraints, and aspirations are effectively integrated into the new Strategy. 

Below is a summary of the feedback provided by Service Managers and their teams. 

a. Personal Computing Estate 

Recent updates and replacements of personal computing devices have all offered opportunities for 

staff to be provided with the device most suitable for their working style, function, and location. As 

such, few new requirements have been identified by Service Managers to change the mix of desktop 

and laptop devices currently deployed to staff, though some service areas are looking to additional 

equipment like tablets to provide digital access in the field. 

b. Printing 

The current fleet of Multi-Function Devices has been mainly well received, and has delivered 

significant savings. However, feedback suggests two areas for further analysis and possible changes to 

the existing estate to address some operational issues. 

c. Telephony 

The desktop telephony solution is a cloud-based Platform-as-a-Service (PaaS) solution, accessed over 

the corporate internet connection and no requirements or issues have been identified to justify 

change. 

The mobile telephone fleet was updated in 2018 and has delivered greater capabilities to end-users 

for network access on the move. Some investigation into devices for managers that rely heavily on 

them.  

Page 90



 

Page | 7 
 

d. Remote Working 

Staff have a number of technology enablers to work away from the office, utilising recent 

improvements to fixed broadband and mobile telephone networks. Notwithstanding a small number 

of unavoidable network not-spots, services are happy with their current remote working options. 

Due to the popularity of remote/home working we have reached capacity on our current kit, we are 

currently considering options for this.  

e. Application Portfolio 

The authority has an array of business application to support the huge number of services it provides 

directly to the public and indirectly in the support of internal service customers. Satisfaction with 

applications is generally high, with just two applications have been identified for review and possible 

replacement, those being the Document Management (Alfresco) and Development Management 

(Agile Applications) systems. 

f. Skills 

Feedback from Service Managers suggests there are variances in the way that staff use devices and 

software applications to perform similar tasks within their services. These inconsistencies mean that 

there are few, if any, standard processes in place for routine tasks, and the potential for inaccurate 

and/or incomplete data records. Planned service application training is to be key to all new projects 

and a review of existing systems/processes to ensure our staff are efficiently using them.  

4. Digital Delivery  

The over-arching vision for our previous Digital Strategy was to change the way we work by making 

our next technological leap. Our existing technology and work habits can still place limits on our 

effectiveness and on our efficiency. Our systems are still not all readily available on mobile technology; 

our files and data are not easy to share; we under-utilise the benefits of some of our technology; and 

we have a large array of different IT applications.  

We have made many improvements to productivity by exploiting new technologies. Some of these 

have introduced new ways of working for our people (councillors and staff) and helped to progress 

further culture change.  

These changes have helped us to achieve our ambition to earn more income from commercial trading 

and co-habitation of our office accommodation.  

We continue to investigate the potential for new ways that customers can self-serve, improving our 

workflows, automating our processes, and improving the extent to which staff can access information 

wherever they are. By doing this we will position ourselves well for capitalising on commercial 

opportunities and potentially trading beyond our current geographic boundaries. 

  

Page 91



 

Page | 8 
 

5. Technology as an enabler 

The Council has made some big changes in recent years by enabling more flexible working, improving 

processes and allowing customers to serve themselves for some services.  Next steps will involve the 

adoption of truly paperless working, extended self-service and more efficient sharing of information 

across staff, councillors, customers and partners. The strategy provides the technological direction of 

travel – an evolutionary technology model – and outlines the steps required to lay the foundations 

upon which we will work to deliver our corporate outcomes. The Council’s technology landscape is 

still built around service-specific and ageing applications, causing inefficiency and over-complication. 

Infrastructure and cloud  

Until quite recently, the focus for enterprise technology was to provide a centralised network, ring-

fenced onsite at the centre of the organisation, delivering out to satellite sites and remote workers. 

Delivering this strategy calls for a mix of onsite services, together with further moves towards cloud 

infrastructure and hosted applications. This diminishes the Council’s physical IT infrastructure over 

time, minimising the budgetary provision required for the Capital Programme. 

One day, it will likely remove the requirement to sustain or co-habit a server room ourselves, reducing 

utility costs for air-conditioning and power, and improving resilience as our dependence on physical 

sites is removed.  

Cloud computing is being adopted across the private and public sector as the delivery method of 

choice. Boston Borough Council was an early adopter of cloud-based telephony and has seen 

significant cost reductions as a result, together with invaluable experience. 

Whilst public bodies have, in the past, been nervous about this direction of travel, official guidance 

from Gov.uk recommends it and departments such as the Ministry of Defence are letting major 

contracts to move into a cloud environment. Cloud computing offers the opportunity for organisations 

to move from traditional procurement and ownership models of IT delivery to a model where one 

consumes the services from a central location outside of the traditional network. There is no need for 

separate and costly investment in servers, upgrades to systems or applications and general 

infrastructure support because all of that is included in the cloud offering.  

Applications  

Key to enabling people to work the way they want is simplifying their IT experience. A legacy of 

multiple complex systems, replaced in a piecemeal way and with a singular narrow focus over many 

years, has resulted in a complicated and difficult-to-manage environment.  

A new breed of enterprise applications is maturing. These are simple to use, and easier to administer; 

enabling staff to conduct their work professionally, to share knowledge, to work at their desk or on 

their mobile device without compromise. These applications enable the customer to access a service 

directly, and to see the entire process through to the end. These applications don’t rely on a legacy 

architecture and the associated cycle of capital expenditure and depreciation of assets, nor the 

complexities and workarounds introduced over decades of technology and process change; they run 

in data centres in the cloud with gold standard security and resilience, and they deliver simply and as 

expected through an internet connection. 

Page 92



 

Page | 9 
 

6. The Technology Foundations  

Investment  

It is recognised that the Council’s response to funding pressures has been to encourage customer self-

serve and demand management for new services to deliver efficiencies. To extend this approach to 

older and more established service offers, further investment in IT will be necessary, and must be well 

planned and executed to deliver maximum benefits. 

Future models of delivery will see a relative shift from capital-heavy application procurement and 

installation towards a revenue-focused consumable model where costs will be based on a per-user, 

per-access basis. Investment in technology delivers the core requirements and keeps the business 

working effectively. This transformation enables the organisation to deliver smarter, better services.  

Principles  

The architectural principles supporting this strategy are aligned with modern technology approaches 

and Government Digital Service principles. This aims towards a balance of innovation within the 

constraints of a legislative environment. 

7. Governance and best practice  

The IT team assists strategic leaders with guidance on the ever-changing communications and 

technology landscape, and works closely with the Business Transformation Team and Information 

Management Group to design and implement effective business processes. The team manages a 

number of IT contracts with third party suppliers to ensure value for money and effective service 

delivery. IT’s role is to provide specialist advice and support, alongside innovation and insight into the 

potential for technological change, underpinned by best practice and good governance. The 

CMT/Transformation Board is an active group within the Council’s programme management 

structure, providing overall governance of all IT elements. Membership is made up of the Corporate 

Management Team. All technology requirements are reviewed by the CMT/Transformation Board to 

ensure compliance with strategy and with data standards or protocols. Projects with IT elements must 

be authorised and monitored by the Business Transformation team, who will refer to best practice 

including Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL) and recognised project management 

methodologies. 

Progress Monitoring 

Project progress will be managed weekly via verbal updates at IT Team Meetings. Formal updates will 

be submitted to SMT each month, and quarterly to CMT/Transformation Board in order to keep senior 

stakeholders informed of progress and to ensure that resources are being managed effectively. 

Collaboration  

Boston Borough Council supports collaborative approaches and activities to deliver quality service and 

maximise value. The Council shares technology components with a number of third parties, including 

South Kesteven and East Lindsey District Councils. Strategic governance of these relationships is 

managed by the CMT/Transformation Board, whereas operational management of services is 

undertaken by Service Managers. 

Page 93



 

Page | 10 
 

Risk management  

The management of risk forms a core part of the organisation’s project management methodology. In 

change and release management, within the IT environment, risk is always a primary consideration. 

As part of incident management, risk to confidentiality, integrity and availability will be the priority. 

Reasonable endeavours will be made to minimise disruption. Risk management provides a proven 

methodology for reducing the impact and likelihood of adverse effects upon IT services. To support 

the delivery of this strategy the following approach will be adopted: Changes to the operational IT 

environment will be subject to change control procedures (based on ITIL) which will include an 

assessment of risk. If the assessment remains high, even after mitigation, then changes will not be 

permitted during working hours. 

Managers of projects dependent on technology will be required to maintain project risk registers 

which will be reviewed as part of the reporting process to the CMT/Transformation Board. The 

Business Transformation team will ensure a risk register is maintained in relation to risks affecting the 

longer term overall delivery of IT services and the achievement of this strategy. Where there is a high 

level of severity, then such risks will be escalated to the Corporate Management Team.  

Financial management 

Sound financial management is required to optimise the benefits of capital investment and revenue 

expenditure. This strategy and its associated Capital investment plan are intended to provide a basis 

for financial planning over a number of years, and to reduce the incident of unexpected expenditure. 

Data management 

The Council remains committed to membership of the Public Sector Mapping Agreement, and by 

association, the Data Co-operation Agreement. The Local Land and Property Gazetteer is the definitive 

dataset for addressing within the authority. Good information governance is in place, led by the Chief 

Information Officer (CIO) who chairs the Information Management Group. Through this group 

Information Asset Owners are kept informed about their responsibilities by the Data Protection Officer 

(DPO). The Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) reports annually to the Chief Executive acting as 

Accountable Officer (AO).  

As an active partner in the East Midlands Public Sector Network (emPSN), the Council commits to 

share data across the public sector so long as it is subject to appropriate protection for the data 

subjects and to secure transfer and retention procedures, with oversight provided by the DPO. 

8. Funding 
The replacement of all IT hardware assets is planned and funded through an approved Capital 

Programme. Line of business applications and software upgrades will be considered on a case-by-case 

basis through submission of a business case through to the CMT/Transformation Board, with 

successful business cases leading to inclusion in a future iteration of this strategy, updated bi-annually. 

 

  

Page 94



 

Page | 11 
 

9. IT Projects: Phase 1  

The following priorities have been approved for inclusion within the first phase of the IT Strategy 

lifecycle, and will provide a sound footing for our future transformation ambition. 

1. Alfresco Enhancement 

Feedback from across the organisation has demonstrated the high usage of electronic 

document management (EDM) across all service areas. This success has increased the needs 

for a resilient application and the impacts of any interruption to service. Anecdotal evidence 

also suggests that some business processes might not have been optimised to reflect the 

functionality of the system. Given the quantity of feedback from across the organisation it is 

proposed that the Alfresco Enhancement project be progressed as a high priority project. 

 

2. Bartec Upgrade 

This project upgrades and expands the functionality of the application used by Waste 

Operations, and expands the capabilities of the system to support the introduction of new 

revenue generating services. 

 

3. Agile Applications Optimisation 

This project will comprise the upgrade of the Agile suite of applications together with service-

specific process analysis in Development Management, Licensing & Land Charges, and 

Building Control to ensure that each service area is aware of the benefits of the upgraded 

application. 

 

4. Email Retention & Case Management 

During November 2019 the email retention policy will be updated to automatically delete all 

received emails more than 6 months old that are stored in Cabinet Folders. This policy change 

is likely to require assistance to be provided to users to migrate older emails onto Alfresco, or 

other line-of-business applications. 

 

5. Text Messaging 

A number of service areas have expressed an interest in being able to send text message 

reminders to customers in order to reduce the numbers of missed appointments, or to ensure 

that customers attend with the necessary documentation and increase the effectiveness of 

their appointment with the council 

 

6. Printing Device Review 

Following the refresh of the corporate device fleet in November 2017 there have been a 

number of changes to assumptions made at the time of deployment. Examples include 

volumes being printed, and the accessibility of devices by users. As such, it is timely to conduct 

a review of the fleet in order to make changes to the location, specification and or number of 

devices currently in use. 

 

  

Page 95



 

Page | 12 
 

Reference Documents 

HMG UK Digital Strategy https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-digital-strategy 
HMG Digital Service Standard https://www.gov.uk/service-manual/service-standard 
Digital Economy Act 2017 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/30/contents/enacted 
 

Page 96


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	3 QUARTER 1 REPORT- PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE
	Appendix A- Quarter 1 Performance Information
	Appendix B- Quarter 1 Risk Information
	Appendix C- Quarter 1 Finance Information

	4 TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME- REFRESH
	Appendix 1 - Proposed Transformation Programme – 2020-21 to 2023-24
	Appendix 2- Public consultation responses

	5 IT STRATEGY 2019-2023
	Appendix A- IT Strategy 2019-2023




